
1 

GOLDSBORO CITY COUNCIL  
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA  
MONDAY, JUNE 21, 2021  
 
(Please turn off, or silence, all cellphones upon entering the Council Chambers) 
 

I. WORK SESSION–5:00 P.M. – COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 214 N. CENTER STREET 
 

1. ROLL CALL  
 

2. ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 
 

3. OLD BUSINESS 
 

4. NEW BUSINESS 
a. Mayoral Vacancy Discussion   

 
II. CALL TO ORDER – 7:00 P.M. – COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 214 N. CENTER STREET 

Invocation  
Pledge of Allegiance  

 

III. ROLL CALL 
 

IV. APPROVAL OF MINUTES (*Motion/Second) 
A.1  Minutes of the Work Session and Regular Meeting of June 7, 2021 
A.2  Minutes of the Special Meeting of June 10, 2021 
 

V. PRESENTATIONS 
 

VI. PUBLIC HEARINGS (*Motion/Second) 
B.   Z-5-21 Anita Yousif (R16 – O&I-1) – South side E. Ash Street between Barrow Court and Malloy Street 

(Planning) 
C.   Z-6-21 FSC II, LLC. (Asphalt Plant) – North side of W. US 70 Hwy. between Perkins Mill Road and 

Springwood Drive (Planning) 
D.   Z-8-21 – MLFL, Inc. - (Tiny Home Village) South side of S. Slocumb Street between Westbrook Road and 

Seymour Drive (Planning) 
 

VII. PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD 
 

VIII. CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS (*Motion/Second--Roll Call) 
E. Change Order Numbers 26, 27, 29 & 30 for Phase IV Sewer Collection Rehabilitation (Formal Bid 

#2018-004) (Engineering)  
F. Amending a Capital Projects Fund Ordinance – Parks & Recreation Capital Projects FY19-24 (G1104) 

(Finance) 
G. Amending the Parks & Recreation Special Revenue Fund Ordinance (G1107) (Finance) 
H. Amending the Community Relations Special Revenue Fund Ordinance (G1108) (Finance) 
I. Amending a Special Revenue Fund Ordinance – Federal and State Drug Forfeiture Special Revenue Fund 

(P3101) (Finance) 
J. Amending a Grant Project Fund Ordinance – Hurricane Florence FEMA 4393DR-NC (R1102) (Finance) 
K. Amending a  Grant Project Fund Ordinance – FY2016 TIGER Discretionary Grant Capital Project Fund 

(R1103) (Finance) 
L. Amending a Grant Project Fund Ordinance – Coronavirus Aid, Relief and Economic Security (CARES) 

Act Special Revenue Fund (R1105) (Finance) 



2 

M. Establishing a Grant Project Fund Ordinance -American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 (R1107) (Finance) 
N. Ordinance authorizing the establishment of a grant project fund for the Little Cherry Big Cherry Pump 

Station Relocation Out of Floodplain (CS370482-08) Capital Project Fund (S1106) (Finance) 
O. Establishing a Grant Project Fund Ordinance – Stormwater Capital Projects Fund (T2201) (Finance) 
P. Amending the Water Line Replacement & Booster Pump Station (BPS) Project (W1111) (Finance) 
Q. Ordinance authorizing the establishment of a grant project fund for the 2” Galvanized Water Lines 

(WIF-1979) Capital Project Fund (W1113) (Finance) 
R. Operating Budget Amendment FY20-21 (Finance) 
S. Resolution authorizing an installment financing contract for rolling stock for FY20 and FY21 with 

Branch Banking & Trust Company (also known as Truist) pursuant to N.C.G.S. §160A-20, and a 
resolution authorizing the establishment of a depository relationship with Branch Banking & Trust 
Company (also known as Truist) pursuant to N.C.G.S. §159-31 (Finance) 

T. Advisory Boards and Commissions Appointments (City Clerk)             
U. Departmental Monthly Reports  

 
IX. ITEMS REQUIRING INDIVIDUAL ACTION (*Motion/Second) 

 
X. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 

 

XI. MAYOR AND COUNCILMEMBERS’ REPORTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

XII. CLOSED SESSION 
 

XIII. ADJOURN 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 2021-_______ 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE GOLDSBORO CITY COUNCIL ESTABLISHING A 
PROCEDURE FOR FILLING VACANT MAYORAL SEAT 

 
 WHEREAS, Chuck Allen, the duly elected Mayor of the City of Goldsboro has 
tendered his written resignation dated June 15, 2021; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Goldsboro accepted his said 
resignation during its regularly scheduled meeting of June 21, 2021 and as a result 
hereby declares that the seat of Mayor is vacant; and 
 
 WHEREAS, as a result of said vacancy the Code of Ordinances and the 
General Statutes of the State of North Carolina state that the Council, by majority 
vote, shall appoint a qualified candidate to fill said vacancy for the remainder of the 
term of said mayor; i.e. until the next general election which will be held in November 
7, 2023; and 
 

WHEREAS, neither the Code of Ordinances nor the General Statutes contain 
a specific procedure for said appointment, therefore, it is necessary and good practice 
to establish a procedure so the City, all council members and potentially interested 
candidates, have a procedure which will guide all for the said appointment; and 
 

WHEREAS, it is necessary that a Resolution be enacted to establish 
procedures for such appointment, and that such are attached hereto as Exhibit A 
setting forth said procedures and is made a part hereof. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council for the City of 
Goldsboro, North Carolina that: 
  

1. The seat for Mayor of the City of Goldsboro is vacant effective June 21, 
2021, and shall be filled by the Council by majority vote. 
 

2. For the proper and consistent application of the Code of Ordinances and the 
General Statutes of the State of North Carolina for the filling of the vacancy 
of said seat for Mayoral representation on the City Council, procedures for 
any appointment to fill said vacancy should be adopted and that such is 
necessary for the proper functioning of the Council. 

 
3. Exhibit A attached hereto sets forth said procedure and is hereby adopted 

as the procedure for the appointment of the vacancy of Mayor of the City of 
Goldsboro. 

 



4. This resolution and Exhibit A are hereby adopted and shall be inserted into 
the official minutes of the City Council of Goldsboro. 

 
 ADOPTED the _______ day of _________________________, 20___. 
 
 
 
       By: _______________________________ 
             David Ham, Mayor Pro Tem 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
By:________________________________ 
     Laura Getz, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



EXHIBIT A 
PROCEDURE FOR FILLING VACANT MAYORAL SEAT 

OF THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO  
 

1. After the creation of a vacancy for Mayor, such being effective June 21, 2021, the City 
Clerk will immediately cause the vacant seat to be advertised in The Goldsboro News-Argus and 
on the City of Goldsboro’s Web Site indicating the appointment process and the following 
eligibility requirements as described in Article VI of the North Carolina Constitution and the City 
of Goldsboro’s Code of Ordinances Section 3:5: 
 
 A. Be a qualified voter in the City of Goldsboro. 
 

B. Be at least 21 years of age and not adjudged a felon not having had their rights 
restored. 

 
C. Currently live within the City of Goldsboro and having done so for at least  

the past thirty (30) days.   
 
 Interested citizens meeting these requirements can pick up the application form from the 
City Clerk’s office in the City Hall at 200 N. Center Street, Goldsboro, NC.  Any potential 
applicant is encouraged to check the City of Goldsboro boundaries while at City Hall to make sure 
they reside within the city before submitting an application.  Completed applications must be 
returned to the City Clerk’s office by 5:00 p.m. on Friday, July 9, 2021.  Applications not received 
by that date will not be considered (placing it in the mail by then does not constitute receipt 
by the City unless it is in the physical custody of the staff of the office of the City Clerk, 
located within the City Manager and Mayor’s offices, 2nd floor, by 5:00 p.m. on Friday, July 
9, 2021).   
 
2. The City Clerk will hold the sealed applications until the deadline date.  After the deadline, 
the City Manager and City Clerk will open the envelopes and verify that each meets the 
qualifications addressed above.  They will forward copies of the contents to each member of the 
City Council by 5:00 p.m. on Friday, July 9, 2021.  The names of applicants shall be released to 
the news media upon request after the applications have been distributed to the City Council.  
Applicants are advised that the applications and therefore any information provided on the said 
applications is subject to disclosure upon a proper public records request. 
 
3. The City Council at the regular City Council meeting scheduled for August 2, 2021, will 
hear presentations by each qualified applicant.  Each applicant will be given up to ten (10) minutes 
to make a presentation on their qualifications for the office and their vision for Goldsboro.   
 
4. At the August 16, 2021 City Council meeting, the City Council will decide if they have 
enough information to vote on the appointment by motion, second, and majority vote.  If so, the 
City Council will be provided a ballot listing the name of each candidate, and each council member 
will vote for ONE (1) candidate only. 
 



5. The ballots shall be passed to the City Clerk who will announce the vote by reading aloud 
each ballot with the name and vote of the Mayor and each council member. 
 
6. If any candidate receives at least 4 total votes on the ballots, that person is “appointed” and 
shall fill the seat. 
 
7. If no candidate gets more than 3 votes, then the 2 applicants receiving the most votes will 
advance to a second ballot, in the same format as the first round. 
 
8. However, if as a result of said initial vote there is a tie that occurs between two or more 
candidates making it such that there are not only 2 applicants with the most votes, then if there is 
one applicant that receives the most votes, that applicant will move to the next round of voting, 
and the council will then by ballot vote on the remaining other applicants so tied and the applicant 
between those such applicants that receives the highest votes will move to the second round of 
voting. 
 
9. If, however as a result of the first round of voting 3 applicants are tied with two votes each, 
then a new ballot will be issued by the Clerk to the council members with those 3 applicants 
thereon, the council shall vote, and follow the above procedures until there are 2 candidates with 
the greatest number of votes; BUT if one of those 3 receive at least 4 votes during that round of 
voting, then that person would be “appointed” and shall fill the seat. 
 
10. Each round of balloting and voting shall be conducted exactly as the first round. 
 
11. Once any candidate gets at least 4 votes, that person is the choice, and may be sworn in at 
the beginning of the next Council meeting. 
 
12. At any time, if no candidate has received at least 4 votes, the Council, upon proper motion, 
second and majority vote, may suspend the selection process, and return to further consideration 
of filling this vacancy at Council’s next meeting. 
 
13. Additionally, at any time during the appointment process, upon motion, second and 
majority vote, the Council may vote to delay the vote on appointment to another date; and may re-
open the application process to consider other interested candidates and shall set application 
deadlines consistent with the process above. 



 



1 
 
 
 
 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL HELD  
JUNE 7, 2021 

 
WORK SESSION 
 

The City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, met in a Work Session in the Council 
Chambers, City Hall, 214 North Center Street, at 3:00 p.m. on June 7, 2021 with attendance as follows: 
 

Present:  
Mayor Pro Tem David Ham, Presiding 
Councilmember Hiawatha Jones  
Councilmember Bill Broadaway 
Councilmember Taj Polack 
Councilmember Brandi Matthews 
Councilmember Gene Aycock (arrived at 5:03) 
Ron Lawrence, City Attorney 
Tim Salmon, City Manager  
Laura Getz, City Clerk 

  
Absent:  Mayor Chuck Allen 

    
 Call to Order.  Mayor Pro Tem Ham called the meeting to order at 3:00 p.m. 
 
 Roll Call.   
 
 Adoption of the Agenda.  City Manager, Tim Salmon requested to add an item to the agenda, 
“Partnership participation and application for Water and Wastewater Viable Utility Reserve Study Grant”. 
Councilmember Polack made a motion to adopt the agenda with the necessary recommendations.  The motion 
was seconded by Councilmember Broadaway.  Mayor Pro Tem Ham, Councilmembers Jones, Broadaway, 
Polack and Matthews voted in favor of the motion.  Councilmember Aycock was absent for the vote. Council 
adopted the agenda. 
 

Financial Presentation. Mr. Ted Cole with the Davenport Group shared information with council 
regarding the city’s financial status.  

 
Credit Rating Overview and Peer Comparatives  

 
Rating Agency Methodologies 



2 
 
 
 
 

 
 
General Fund Financial Performance 

 
 
 
General Fund Balance Overview  

 
 
General Fund Balance-Peer Comparatives 

 
 



3 
 
 
 
 

Existing Tax Supported Debt 

 
 
Key Debt Ratio: Tax Supported Payout Ratio 

 
 
 
Key Debt Ratio: Debt to Assessed Value  

 
 
Key Debt Ratio: Debt Service vs. Expenditures  

 



4 
 
 
 
 

 
Council asked Mr. Cole questions throughout the presentation.      
 
Budget Work Session.  

Mr. Tim Salmon made a statement concerning the upcoming budget and introduced Ms. Catherine Gwynn, 
Finance Director to present a summary of the FY21-22 Budget.  She shared that there is a proposed 3-cent 
property tax increase for the general fund and a proposed 15% water and sewer rate increase.   
 

 
 

 
 

 
 



5 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
REVENUES 

 
 

 



6 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 



7 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 



8 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 



9 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 



10 
 
 
 
 

 
 
POSITIONS 

 
 

 
 

 
 
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
 



11 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
DEPARTMENTAL REQUESTS 

 
 

 
 



12 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 



13 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 



14 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 



15 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 



16 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
DOWNTOWN MUNCICPAL SERVICE DISTRICT FUND 
OCCUPANCY TAX FUNDS  

 
 



17 
 
 
 
 

 
 
VEHICLES AND CAPITAL OUTLAY 

 
 

 
 

 
 



18 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 



19 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 



20 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Mr. Salmon asked council for a consensus regarding the four items listed above.  Council discussed the items in 
question.  Mayor Pro Tem Ham mentioned the next meeting will be June 14, 2021.  Ms. Gwynn shared what the 
provision of services cover to include health, safety, and welfare: Police, Fire, and Community Relations.  The 
special revenue fund would be a fund for whatever projects Council decides. Ms. Gwynn shared that the 
expenditure would be in contingency and only council can approve the use of those funds. Mr. Mike Wagner, 
Public Utilities Director shared information concerning the water and sewer issues in Goldsboro.  
 
Council discussed the first item regarding using the ARP funds and came to a consensus to use the ARP funds 
as described.    
 
Mayor Pro Tem Ham recessed the meeting at 5:50.  Council returned at 6:26 pm.   
 
Upon motion of Councilmember Broadaway, seconded by Councilmember Jones and unanimously carried, 
Council excused Councilmember Aycock from the remainder of the meeting.  Council proceeded with the 
remaining work session items.  
 
Boards and Commissions Discussion  
Ms. Laura Getz shared information regarding current vacancies on the Commission on Community Relations 
and Development and the Recreation Advisory Commission.  Council discussed the vacancies and 
recommended the following citizens for appointment. The clerk will bring back a resolution appointing the 
members at the June 21, 2021 council meeting.  
 
Commission on Community Relations and Development 
Terri Bradley 
Marcus Lewis  
 
Recreation Advisory Commission 
Joanne Clark 
  

Consent Agenda Review.  Each item was reviewed.   
 

There being no further business, the meeting recessed until the 7:00 p.m. meeting. 
 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 
 The City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, met in regular session in Council Chambers, 
City Hall, 214 North Center Street, at 7:00 p.m. on June 7, 2021 with attendance as follows: 
 
 Present:  Mayor Pro Tem David Ham, Presiding 

Councilmember Hiawatha Jones 
Councilmember Bill Broadaway 

   Councilmember Taj Polack 
Councilmember Brandi Matthews 

  
Absent:  Mayor Chuck Allen 
  Councilmember Gene Aycock 

 
 Mayor Pro Tem Ham called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 



21 
 
 
 
 

 
Pastor DJ Coles with Cornerstone Church of Goldsboro provided the invocation.  The Pledge of 

Allegiance followed.  
 
Roll Call.  
 
Approval of Minutes.  Upon motion of Councilmember Polack, seconded by Councilmember 

Broadaway and unanimously carried, Council approved the Minutes of the Work Session and Regular Meeting 
of May 3, 2021 and the Minutes of the Work Session and Regular Meeting of May 17, 2021. 

 
Presentations. 
City Clerk Swearing In Ceremony-Representative John Bell administered the oath of office as city 

clerk to Laura Getz.  Her family joined her for the ceremony.       
 
Public Hearings.  
Public Hearing on FY2021-2022 Annual Operating Budget. Public Hearing Held. The North 

Carolina General Statute §159-12 requires the governing board to conduct a public hearing prior to the adoption 
of the annual operating budget.  Statute further requires that the budget officer file notice of the availability of 
the budget for public inspection and the date and time of the budget hearing.  This was done on Tuesday, June 
1, 2021 in the Goldsboro News-Argus, and additionally published on the City’s website and via social media. 

 
Upon closing of the public hearing, staff will be prepared to present the FY2021-2022 annual operating budget 
ordinance for proposed adoption at the June 21, 2021 meeting. 

 
It is recommended Council:  

1. Conduct public hearing on the annual operating budget at the June 7, 2021 council meeting at 7:00 
p.m. 

2. Establish any additional budget work session(s) date(s) and times, if necessary before June 30, 2021 
at midnight. 

3. If no further discussion is requested, adopt the FY2021-2022 annual operating budget ordinance at 
the June 21, 2021 meeting. 

 
Mayor Pro Tem Ham opened the public hearing and the following people spoke: 
 
1. Mary Ann Dudley, C’aisa Allen and Meghan Pakalnis—Boys and Girls Club of Wayne County 

shared information concerning the Boys and Girls Club and requested their original amount of 
funding.  

 
2. Georgia Dees and Diane Belmont—Arts Council shared information concerning the Arts 

Council and requested their original requested budget amount of funding.  
 
3. Phyllis Merritt-James shared concerns about the proposed budget to include increasing base pay, 

opportunities, infrastructure, healthy communities, and to consider our children.  
 
4. Carl Martin shared concerns about the proposed budget to include the Paramount Theater, Event 

Center, Golf Course, Multi-Sports Complex, Cornerstone Commons and Parks and Recreation.   
 
5. Janice Scanes shared concerns about the budget to include raising the water and sewer rates and 

how that rate increase would affect the elderly.  
 
6. Dr. David Craig shared concerns about the budget to include increasing the city’s fund balance.  
 
7. Thomas Rice –MLFL shared there is a need to help the homeless and requested the city’s help to 

house the homeless. 
 
No one else spoke and the public hearing was closed.   
 
Public Hearing-FY21-22 Annual Action Plan and Recommended Budget. Public Hearing Held.  

City Council action is needed to accept an increase in FY21-22 allocation of funds by the United States 
Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) from the Community Development Block Grant 
(CDBG), and American Rescue Plan (ARP).  In addition, City Council must approve the FY21-22 Annual 
Action Plan and budget recommendations in preparation for HUD’s submission deadline on June 16, 2021. 



22 
 
 
 
 

 
City Council approved the Annual Action Plan on May 3, 2021. Subsequently, HUD awarded an additional 
amount of $5,142 to the CDBG formula allocation, bringing the total amount to $354,122. HUD also awarded 
$907,913 in HOME funds specifically tied to the American Rescue Plan (ARP). HUD has awarded $349,980 in 
CDBG and $250,738 in HOME funds to the City of Goldsboro for use to develop viable urban communities by 
providing decent housing, suitable living environment, and expanding economic opportunities, mainly for 
persons of low-to-moderate income.  

 
Due to the restrictive use of funds placed on the HOME program to focus on projects and/or activities designed 
exclusively to create affordable housing for low-income households, the City has historically each year carried 
over a substantial amount of prior years’ HOME funds when it has not undertaken large development projects.  
Staff has developed a plan to responsibly spend these funds in the upcoming fiscal year. 

 
In order to adhere to the City’s Citizen Participation Plan, and while operating under HUD’s waiver to reduce 
the required public comment, the public was notified of the additional funds and a 3-day comment period was 
held June 4, 2021 to June 6, 2021. On June 7, 2021 during the City Council’s Regular Meeting, staff will 
provide the City Council with a presentation of the revisions to the FY21-22 Annual Action Plan and budget 
recommendations.  In addition, a public hearing will be held during the regular meeting to gather public input 
on the use of HUD funds.  All public meetings and hearings, as well as the availability of draft plans for public 
review and comment, were duly advertised in the Goldsboro News Argus as well as on the City’s website. 

 
To date staff has received one comment via telephone from a resident regarding American Rescue Plan funds. 
Comments will be incorporated into the final submission of the FY21-22 Annual Action Plan.   

 
The 2021-2022 Annual Action Plan is the second year of implementing the Five-Year Consolidated Plan for 
2020-2024.  A summary of the 2021-2022 drafted Annual Action Plan proposed activities and use of funds is 
attached. Accomplishments will be reported in the CAPER.   

 
It is recommended Council accept the increased FY21-22 allocation of funds by HUD from the CDBG program 
and allocation of HOME funds through the American Rescue Plan (ARP) and approve the FY21-22 Annual 
Action Plan and budget recommendations presented during City Council’s Regular Meeting of June 7, 2021 in 
preparation for HUD’s submission deadline on June 16, 2021.   

 
It is also recommended Council authorize the Mayor and staff to execute and file the Annual Action Plan, along 
with the required Certifications, the SF-424, and Grant Agreements that are required to receive CDBG and ARP 
funding for and on behalf of the City of Goldsboro, and to make necessary changes to those documents where 
required by HUD. 

 
Ms. Felecia Williams introduced Ms. Lea Henry, President of Two Rivers Development, who provided 

information on the Annual Action Plan. She shared that the city’s citizen participation plan requires additional 
monies allocated to be brought back to the public. She shared detailed information regarding the additional 
funds.  
 
Mayor Pro Tem Ham opened the Public Hearing. No one spoke and the public hearing was closed.  

 
Councilmember Broadaway made a motion to approve the FY21-22 Annual Action Plan and budget 

recommendations presented during City Council’s Regular Meeting of June 7, 2021 in preparation for HUD’s 
submission deadline on June 16, 2021. The motion was seconded by Councilmember Polack and was 
unanimously carried. 

 
Councilmember Polack made a motion to authorize the mayor pro tem and staff to execute and file the 

Annual Action Plan, along with the required Certifications, the SF-424, and Grant Agreements that are required 
to receive CDBG and ARP funding for and on behalf of the City of Goldsboro, and to make necessary changes 
to those documents where required by HUD.  The motion was seconded by Councilmember Jones and was 
unanimously carried. 

 
Public Comment Period.  Mayor Pro Tem Ham opened the public comment period.  The following 

people spoke: 
1. Sylvia Barnes shared concerns about leaf and limb charges, councilmembers not responding 

to their constituents and concerns regarding the Wayne County Public Library. 
2. Carl Martin shared concerns about the financial audit and requested that a forensic audit be 

conducted.  



23 
 
 
 
 

3. Dr. David Craig shared information about the Goldsboro-Wayne Racial and Ethnic 
Disparities-Disproportionate Minority Contact Initiative.    

 
No one else spoke and the public comment period was closed.   

 
Consent Agenda - Approved as Recommended. Mayor Pro Tem David Ham presented the Consent 

Agenda.  All items were considered to be routine and could be enacted simultaneously with one motion and a 
roll call vote.  If a Councilmember so requested, any item(s) could be removed from the Consent Agenda and 
discussed and considered separately.  In that event, the remaining item(s) on the Consent Agenda would be 
acted on with one motion and roll call vote.  Councilmember Broadaway moved the items on the Consent 
Agenda, Items E, F, G, H, and I as recommended by the City Manager and staff.  The motion was seconded by 
Councilmember Polack. A roll call vote resulted in Mayor Pro Tem Ham, Councilmembers Jones, Broadaway 
and Polack voting in favor of the motion.  Councilmember Matthews voted against the motion.  The motion 
carried 4:1.  The items on the Consent Agenda were as follows: 

 
Resolution – Intent to Standardize Flood Barriers. Resolution Adopted. The City of Goldsboro 

owns a flood barrier system to protect areas of the water treatment plant from infiltration during extreme 
flooding. The system consists of portable, hollow, plastic wall sections 36” tall by 40” long and corners, called 
multi hubs that are 36” tall and 17” long.  Sections of the system are joined by a two piece interlocking key 
weighing a combined 110lbs.  That initial weight plus filling the barrier with water provide the stability for the 
unit to deflect flood waters up to the 36” height.  The system is reusable by draining the water, removing the 
pins and storing until needed again. Currently the City owns Seventy wall sections and Eighteen corner 
sections. To protect the entire water plant and the support generators requires 150 wall sections and 24 corner 
sections. Mixing this system with another manufacturer’s product would not be possible as the designs are 
incompatible.  
 
General Statute 143-129 establishes the State bidding requirements for purchase of apparatus, supplies, 
materials, or equipment. Subsection (e)(6)(iii) grants the city authority to exempt purchases from the   bidding 
requirements when standardization or compatibility is the overriding consideration. 

  
The Council may standardize the current design and re-evaluate if the design is discontinued, and additionally at 
5 year intervals. 

 
It is recommended that Council authorize the standardization of the flood barrier system in order to maintain 
compatibility with current system. Consent Agenda Approval. Broadaway/Polack (4 Ayes: 1 Nay) 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2021-45 “RESOLUTION OF INTENT TO STANDARDIZE FLOOD BARRIER 

SYSTEM” 
 
Lease Authorization for Goldsboro Golf Course. Approved. Goldsboro Golf Course has a sprayer 

that is 15+ years old and is no longer operable.  This sprayer is shared between the Golf Course and Parks and 
Recreation. 

 
For the Golf Course, it is used to spray the fairways and the rough.  For Parks and Recreation, it is used to spray 
our sports fields including our Bryan Multi-Sports Complex. 

        
Staff are recommending in the FY22 budget to lease a sprayer for $657 per month plus tax instead of 
purchasing a sprayer for $39,558.24 plus tax.  Staff request authorization from City Council to initiate the 
paperwork for the lease agreement.  No payments will be made before the start of the FY22 budget.  

  
It is recommended that Council authorize the Mayor, City Clerk and Finance Director to execute a 60 month 
lease agreement with Smith Turf & Irrigation for a Workman HDX (2WD) with sprayer. Consent Agenda 
Approval. Broadaway/Polack (4 Ayes: 1 Nay) 
 

CU-6-21 David L. Hood – (Accessory Dwelling) West side of South Andrews Avenue between 
Laurel Street and E. Pine Street. Order Adopted.  The applicant is requesting a Conditional Use Permit for 
the construction of an accessory dwelling located at 307 S. Andrews Avenue.   
 
According to the City’s Unified Development Code, accessory dwellings are permitted in all single-family 
zoning districts or developed lots with the exception of the Agriculture (AG) zoning district only after the 
obtainment of a Conditional Use Permit approved by City Council. 

 



24 
 
 
 
 

Approval criteria for accessory dwellings are as follows: 
1. Accessory dwellings/apartments must comply with all applicable local, state and federal housing codes. 

Only one accessory dwelling or apartment may be permitted per lot.  
2. The accessory dwelling or accessory apartment shall not exceed forty percent (40%) of the square footage 

of the livable area of the principle structure or one thousand one hundred square feet of gross floor area, 
whichever is less.  

3.  An accessory dwelling shall be sited to the rear of the principle structure. All accessory dwellings shall 
meet the setback requirements established for the principle structures of the district in which they are 
located.  

4.  The exterior of the accessory dwelling shall be compatible with the principle residence in terms of color, 
siding, roof pitch, window detailing, roofing materials and foundation or skirting appearance. 
Manufactured homes shall not be pulled up to or attached to the principle residence and be considered an 
accessory dwelling or accessory apartment.  

5. Where there is no public sanitary sewer service to the accessory dwelling, the County Health Department 
shall approve sanitary sewer services provided to such accessory dwelling before construction begins. 

 
According to the submitted application, the applicant is requesting a Conditional Use Permit for the 
construction of a 12 ft. wide by 24 ft. deep (288 sq. ft.) accessory dwelling to be located in the rear yard of the 
property.  Currently, the property is occupied by a single-story 1,264 sq. ft. single-family dwelling. 

 
Frontage:                      60 ft.  
Area:   11,017 sq. ft. or .25 acres 
Zone:   (R-6) Residential 

 
Staff has informed applicant of the fact that the proposed accessory dwelling must be constructed to meet the 
minimum requirements of the North Carolina Building Code, as well as, the supplemental regulations of the 
City’s Unified Development Code for accessory dwellings.   
 
If the applicant’s request for a conditional use permit is approved, building elevations, a site plan, floor plan and 
construction specifications shall be submitted and approved by City staff before building permits can be issued. 
 
At the public hearing held May 17, 2021 the applicant spoke in favor of the request and no one appeared in 
opposition. 
 
The Planning Commission at their meeting held May 24, 2021, recommended approval of a Conditional Use 
Permit for the placement of an accessory dwelling at the subject property.   

 
It is recommended that Council accept the recommendation of the Planning Commission and adopt an Order 
approving the Conditional Use Permit #CU-6-21 for the installation of an accessory dwelling at 307 S. Andrews 
Avenue and construct to meet the minimum requirements of the North Carolina Building Code, as well as, the 
supplemental regulations of the City’s Unified Development Code for accessory dwellings. Consent Agenda 
Approval. Broadaway/Polack (4 Ayes: 1 Nay) 

 
Professional Engineering On-Call Services for the City of Goldsboro Engineering Projects. 

Approved. The City of Goldsboro has been awarded a grant of approximately $8.8M  from the American 
Rescue Plan Act of 2021, a DWSRF loan of approximately $3M and an ASADRA loan of approximately $3M 
from the NC Division of Water Infrastructure to undertake infrastructure improvements in the City. The 
objective of the work is to replace aging infrastructure and resolve various issues within the infrastructure 
systems. 

 
Although guidance has not been issued in regards to acquiring engineering services it is anticipated that an 
Engineering Services Request for Qualifications (RFQ) is required. Following selection of an engineering firm 
negotiations for engineering costs will commence. 

 
By requesting qualifications for on-call engineering services the City of Goldsboro will most likely meet the 
engineering services acquisition requirements of the grants/loans agencies. 

 
The Engineering Department provided a request for qualifications concerning professional on-call engineering 
services. The proposals addressed furnishing professional engineering services for various engineering projects 
(Water Treatment & Distribution, Wastewater Treatment & Distribution, Stormwater, Transportation, and 
Construction Inspection). For each category of engineering services a maximum of three (3) engineering firms 
are to be selected. 



25 
 
 
 
 

 
Twenty-four engineering firms submitted proposals for the on-call engineering services RFQ. Engineering and 
Public Utilities staff reviewed proposals and based on the expertise and knowledge required selected the 
following engineering firms (listed in order of scoring) for all categories of engineering services: 

 
• Withers and Ravenel 
• CDM Smith 
• The Wooten Company 
 

The actual negotiated engineering services contract associated with any specific project will be presented to 
City Council at a later meeting for approval. 

 
The selection and approval of these engineering firms will be in effect for a period of three (3) years with an 
option to extend up to a total of five (5) years. At the end of the term for this RFQ another solicitation for 
engineering on-call services will be advertised. 

 
It is recommended that Council approve the selected engineering firms for current and future infrastructure 
projects. Consent Agenda Approval. Broadaway/Polack (4 Ayes: 1 Nay) 

 
Partnership participation and application for Water and Wastewater Viable Utility Reserve Study 

Grant. Resolution Adopted.  The State Water Infrastructure Authority and the Local Government Commission 
have developed criteria to determine how local government units should be assessed for need and eligibility 
under the Viable Utility Reserve. 

 
The viable utility program provides funding to build a path toward viable utility systems using long-term 
solutions for distressed water and wastewater units in North Carolina. 

   
While Goldsboro was not designated a distressed system in February 2021 by the State Water Infrastructure 
Authority and the Local Government Commission, several regional government units were. These include the 
Towns of Fremont, Eureka, Pikeville, and Mt. Olive.  

 
The path forward for these units include, conducting an asset inventory and assessment, assessing merger and/or 
regionalization options, rate study, participation in training and educational program, and developing an action 
plan for viability. These programs will be funded through grant monies.  

 
Staff recommends regional partnership participation in the viable utility program with local government units. 
Goldsboro’s participation could create eligibility for grant funding for asset inventory and assessment, rate 
study, or regionalization assessments.  

 
It is recommended that Council adopt the following entitled Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute 
the North Carolina Department of Environmental Quality Division of Water Infrastructure Application for 
Viable Utility Reserve Study Grant and participation in the Viable Utility Reserve program. Consent Agenda 
Approval. Broadaway/Polack (4 Ayes: 1 Nay) 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2021-46 “RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE 

NORTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY DIVISION OF WATER 
INFRASTRUCTURE APPLICATION FOR VIABLE UTILITY RESERVE STUDY GRANT AND 
PARTICIPATION IN THE VIABLE UTILITY RESERVE PROGRAM” 
  

End of Consent Agenda. 
 

Items Requiring Individual Action.  
 

Amending a Special Revenue Fund Ordinance – Police Other Restricted Revenue Funds (P3104). 
Ordinance Adopted. On June 17, 2019 City Council approved the creation of a special revenue fund for the 
Police Department to create more transparency in the collection and disbursement of funds received from 
special court allocations, storage fees, various fundraisers, donations, sale of found property, and other 
restricted revenue sources for the police department. 
  
The Police department has received $11,000 in various donations from the Walmart community grant, law 
enforcement calendar fundraiser, and private citizens.  Also, it has received $1,646 in proceeds from the sale of 



26 
 
 
 
 

found guns and property through Propertyroom.com, and $22 investment interest that has accumulated since the 
last budget amendment. 
  
Councilmember Broadaway made a motion to adopt the following entitled Project Budget Ordinance 
amendment for the Police Other Restricted Revenue Funds (P3104) for $12,668.00. The motion was seconded 
by Councilmember Polack. Councilmember Matthews asked what the special revenue fund was used for.  Ms. 
Gwynn shared details of the fund.  The motion was unanimously carried.   

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2021-7 “AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE SPECIAL REVENUE FUND FOR 

THE POLICE OTHER RESTRICTED REVENUE FUND (P3104)” 
 

Z-4-21 Faith Christian Academy (GB – O&I1) – South side of W. US 70 Hwy. between Hargrove 
Street and US 117 Hwy. Ordinance Adopted.  The subject properties are adjacent to a larger tract owned by 
the applicant currently zoned Office and Institutional. The subject properties are associated with the operation 
of a private school and church formally known as Faith Christian Academy and Faith Freewill Baptist Church.   
 
The applicant requests a change of zone for three parcels of property from General Business (GB) to Office and 
Institutional (O&I-1) for the construction of a multi-purpose soccer field.     
 
If the change of zone is approved, City staff will require a recombination of the individual properties into one 
parcel, as well as, site plan approval for the proposed multi-purpose soccer field before construction permits are 
issued.  
 
Frontage: + 375 ft. (W. Grantham St.) 
Area:  + 3.65 acres 
 
SURROUNDING ZONING: 
North:   General Business (GB); 
South:  Office and Institutional (O&I-1); 
East:  General Business (GB); and 
West:  Office & Institutional (O&I-1)  
 
The subject properties were previously used for pre-k classroom facilities, playgrounds, student 
loading/unloading zones and staff parking.  The existing facilities were relocated to the rear of the site and now 
the subject properties are clear and vacant. 
 
The City’s Land Use Plan recommends Commercial development. Proposed zoning for the property is 
compatible with the principle use and adjacent properties in the area.  
 
The subject properties are located in a Special Flood Hazard Area known as the City’s 100-year floodplain.  
Any proposed development must meet City Engineering requirements before construction permits can be 
issued. 
 
At the public hearing held May 17, 2021 no one appeared to speak for or against the request. 
 
The Planning Commission at their meeting held May 24, 2021, recommended approval for the requested change 
of zone of the subject property from General Business (GB) to Office and Institutional (O&I-1).  Although, not 
consistent with the City of Goldsboro’s Comprehensive Land Use Plan, the proposed rezoning and use is 
compatible with the principle use and the majority of adjacent properties within the surrounding area.   
 
Upon motion of Councilmember Broadaway, seconded by Councilmember Polack and unanimously carried, 
Council accepted the recommendation of the Planning Commission and found the proposed zoning amendment 
inconsistent with the City’s adopted Comprehensive Land Use Plan however, the proposed use is compatible 
with the principle use and the majority of adjacent properties within the surrounding area and; found the 
proposed zoning amendment is reasonable and in the public interest because it supports the principle use as a 
church and private school as permitted uses in the Office and Institutional zoning district and the zoning is 
compatible with the majority of adjacent properties within the surrounding areas and; adopt the following 
entitled Ordinance changing the zoning for the property from General Business (GB) to Office and Institutional 
(O&I-1).  
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2021-8 “AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT 
ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO, NORTH CAROLINA CODE OF ORDINANCES” 



27 
 
 
 
 

 
Unified Development Ordinance Update. Ordinance Adopted.  City Council at their meeting held 

December 7, 2020 adopted a resolution authorizing the Mayor and City Clerk to execute a contract with Stewart 
Inc., for the Unified Development Ordinance Update Assistance to reflect the Chapter 160D reorganization.  In 
2019, the NC General Assembly adopted a complete reorganization of the state’s planning and development 
regulation statutes and named it Chapter 160D.  To conform to this new regulatory and statutory framework, 
every city and county development regulation in the state of North Carolina must update his or her ordinances 
by July 1, 2021.   
 
The City of Goldsboro first adopted its Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) in 2005 and has amended it 
from time to time over the past 15 years.  The main purpose of the update is to focus on the reorganization 
mandated by Chapter 160D as reflected within Article 2 – Approvals, however, the update also includes 
necessary revisions of the following Articles within the existing UDO:   
 

• Article 5 – Zoning, as it relates to general setback, height and area standards, table of permitted uses, 
supplemental use regulations, and Historic Preservation Overlay District;  

• Article 6 – Supplemental Design Standards, as it relates to parking standards;  
• Article 8 – Administrative Agencies, to ensure all Boards and Commissions reflect the recent updates of 

the City’s Code of Ordinances Chapter 32 and; 
• Article 9 – Definitions, to reflect changes and update terminology used within the ordinance.     

 
Stewart proposed a work program that divided the update into three phases.  Phase 1 – Project Initiation, Phase 
2 – UDO Preparation and Composition and Phase 3 - Adoption.  City Council was brief early March and gave 
guidance to the consultant and staff regarding the preparation of the final draft.  The draft is now available for 
public review and will be presented to the Planning Commission for a recommendation at their May 24, 2021 
meeting. 
 
At the public hearing held May 17, 2021, no one appeared to speak for or against the proposed ordinance 
amendments. 
 
The Planning Commission at their meeting held May 24, 2021 recommended approval of amending the Unified 
Development Ordinance to reflect the Chapter 160D reorganization as adopted by the NC General Assembly 
and presented by staff.   
 
Upon motion of Councilmember Polack, seconded by Councilmember Jones and unanimously carried, Council 
accepted the recommendation of the Planning Commission and adopted the following entitled Ordinance 
amending the City of Goldsboro’s Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) to reflect the Chapter 160D 
reorganization as adopted by the NC General Assembly.  

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2021-9 “AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ARTICLES 2, 5, 6, 8 AND 9 RELATIVE TO 

CHAPTER 160D REORGANIZATION AS ADOPTED BY THE NC GENERAL ASSEMBLY AND ADOPTING 
UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENTS FOR THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO, NORTH 
CAROLINA, AND ITS EXTRATERRITORIAL JURISDICTION” 
 

Adoption of a Supplement to the Code of Ordinances of Goldsboro, North Carolina. Ordinance 
Adopted.  In 1990, an agreement was reached between the North Carolina League of Municipalities and the 
City of Goldsboro to engage American Legal Publishing Company to revise the Code of Ordinances of 
Goldsboro.  The revised Code was published in 1995.  
 
The agreement stated that American Legal Publishing Company would prepare supplements for incorporation 
of new Ordinances to the City Code of Ordinances on a recurring basis.  In compliance with this agreement, the 
City has received the S-45 Supplement.  This Supplement contains all Ordinances of a general nature enacted 
since S-44 Code of Ordinances dated May 18, 2020. 
 
Upon motion of Councilmember Jones, seconded by Councilmember Polack and unanimously carried, Council 
adopted the following entitled Ordinance enacting and adopting the 2021 S-45 Supplement to the Code of 
Ordinances of the City of Goldsboro.  
 
ORDINANCE NO. 2021-10 “AN ORDINANCE ENACTING AND ADOPTING A SUPPLEMENT TO THE 
CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO, NORTH CAROLINA” 
 



28 
 
 
 
 

City Manager’s Report.  Mr. Salmon asked if council had a date and time for next budget review.  
Mayor Pro Tem Ham stated that council had discussed the next meeting to be held on Thursday, June 10, 2021 
at 3:00 pm.  

 
Mayor and Councilmembers’ Reports and Recommendation.   
 
Councilmember Polack read the following Resolutions: 
 
Resolution Expressing Appreciation for Services Rendered by Thurman Shackleford as an 

Employee of  the City of Goldsboro for More Than 8 Years. Resolution Adopted.  Thurman Shackleford 
retired on June 1, 2021 as a Fire Lieutenant with the Goldsboro Fire Department of the City of Goldsboro with 
more than 8 years of service. Thurman began his career on January 23, 2013 as a Firefighter with the Goldsboro 
Fire Department in the City of Goldsboro. On June 22, 2016, Thurman’s position was reclassified as Senior 
Firefighter with the Goldsboro Fire Department. On December 6, 2017, Thurman was promoted to Fire 
Engineer with the Goldsboro Fire Department. On April 22, 2020, Thurman was promoted to Fire Lieutenant 
with the Goldsboro Fire Department where he has served until his retirement. Thurman has proven himself to be 
a dedicated and efficient public servant who has gained the admiration and respect of his fellow workers and the 
citizens of the City of Goldsboro. The Mayor and City Council of the City of Goldsboro are desirous, on behalf 
of themselves, City employees and the citizens of the City of Goldsboro, of expressing to Thurman Shackleford 
their deep appreciation and gratitude for the service rendered by him to the City over the years. The Mayor and 
City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, express to Thurman our very best wishes for success, 
happiness, prosperity and good health in his future endeavors. 

 
Upon motion of Councilmember Broadaway, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Ham and unanimously carried, 
Council adopted the following entitled Resolution. 
 
Mr. Shackleford shared favorable comments concerning Council.    
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2021-47 “RESOLUTION EXPRESSING APPRECIATION FOR SERVICES 
RENDERED BY THURMAN SHACKLEFORD AS AN EMPLOYEE OF THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO FOR 
MORE THAN 8 YEARS” 

 
Resolution to Commemorate Juneteenth. Resolution Adopted. News of the end of slavery did not 

reach the frontier areas of the United States, in particular the State of Texas and the other Southwestern States, 
until months after the conclusion of the Civil War, more than 2 ½ years after President Abraham Lincoln issued 
the Emancipation Proclamation on January 1, 1863. On June 19, 1865, Union soldiers, led by Major General 
Gordon Granger, arrived in Galveston, Texas, with news that the Civil War had ended and the enslaved were 
free. African Americans who had been slaves in the Southwest celebrated June 19, commonly known as 
“Juneteenth,” as inspiration and encouragement for future generations. African Americans from the Southwest 
have continued the tradition of observing Juneteenth for more than 150 years. Juneteenth began as a holiday in 
the State of Texas and is now celebrated in 46 States and the District of Columbia as a special day of 
observance in recognition of the emancipation of all slaves in the United States. Juneteenth celebrations have 
been held to honor African-American freedom, history and heritage, while encouraging self-development and 
respect for all cultures. Slavery was not officially abolished until the ratification of the 13th Amendment to the 
Constitution of the United States in December 1865. The faith and strength of character demonstrated by former 
slaves and the descendants of former slaves remain an example for all people of the United States, regardless of 
background, religion, or race. The City of Goldsboro is committed to promoting diversity, racial and cultural 
harmony. The City of Goldsboro designates June 19 as “Juneteenth” in the City of Goldsboro and intends to 
officially recognize the historical significance of this holiday annually: supports the continued nationwide 
celebration of Juneteenth to provide an opportunity for the people of the United States to learn more about the 
past and to better understand the experiences that have shaped the United States; and recognizes that the 
observance of the end of slavery is part of the history and heritage of the United States. 

 
Upon motion of Councilmember Broadaway, seconded by Councilmember Polack and unanimously carried, 
Council adopted the following entitled Resolution. 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2021-48 “RESOLUTION TO COMMEMORATE JUNETEENTH” 

 
Councilmember Jones thanked everyone for their comments. She also thanked Just Us who helped with 

a clean sweep in District One.  
 



29 
 
 
 
 

Councilmember Broadaway shared that yesterday was June 6, the guys stormed that beach so that we 
can have the kind of meeting we had tonight so that people can speak their minds.   

 
Councilmember Polack thanked Mr. Shackleford for the kind words and shared a statement concerning 

his character and stated that he is approachable.  He also congratulated all the graduates.   
 

Councilmember Matthews stated no comment. 
 

Mayor Pro Tem Ham shared his thoughts about the budget and stated that council takes the budget 
process seriously. 

 
Closed Session Held.  Upon motion of Councilmember Polack, seconded Councilmember Jones and 

unanimously carried, Council convened into Closed Session to discuss litigation and personnel matters.   
 
Council came out of Closed Session.   
 
Upon motion of Councilmember Jones and unanimously carried, the meeting adjourned at 9:07 p.m. 
 
 
       ___________________________ 
       David Ham   
       Mayor Pro Tem    
 
 
       ___________________________ 
       Laura Getz, MMC/NCCMC     
       City Clerk  



MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL  
JUNE 10, 2021 

 

The City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, met in a Special Meeting to discuss the 
FY21-22 Budget in the Council Chambers, City Hall, 214 North Center Street, at 3:00 p.m. on June 10, 
2021 with attendance as follows: 

Present: Mayor Pro Tem David Ham, Presiding 
Councilmember Hiawatha Jones  
Councilmember Bill Broadaway 
Councilmember Taj Polack 
Councilmember Brandi Matthews 
Councilmember Gene Aycock (arrived at 3:05)  
Tim Salmon, City Manager  
Laura Getz, City Clerk 

  
Absent:  Mayor Chuck Allen 

    

Call to Order.  Mayor Pro Tem Ham called the meeting to order at 3:00 p.m. 

Budget Discussion  

Council discussed the proposed budget throughout the meeting.  

Discussion Topics included:  

a. Infrastructure 
b. Water and sewer issues  
c. City employees raises.   
d. Consultant fee line item 
e. Membership Dues  
f. Car allowances and cell phones concerns.  
g. Uniforms for Parks and Recreation employees  
h. Friends of Seymour dues  
i. Police Dept. Requests 
j. Mental Health Association 
k. Summer Youth Program  
l. Waynesborough Park Donation  
m. Part time positions in the fire department 
n. Advertising for Travel and Tourism 
o. Advertising for Dillard Alumni  
p. Personal protective equipment   
q. HVAC maintenance 

 
Department Heads were invited to share budget concerns with Council. The following department heads 
spoke: 

1. Planning Director, Jennifer Collins spoke about her department budget needs.  
2. Public Utilities Director, Mike Wagner spoke about his department budget needs.   



City Manager Tim Salmon asked for a consensus on the four items below.  

1. Use a portion of the ARP ($1.7M) for the provision of services; place the remainder of ARP funds 
received this year ($2.7M) in a special revenue fund to be used as determined by Council 

2. A loan for essential vehicles ($1.8M) 

3. Raising the property tax 3-cents per $100 valuation ($38/year for $127K median value home in 
Goldsboro per U.S. Census Bureau information) 

4. Raising the water and sewer utility rates 15% ($10/month inside the City $68 to $78; $19/mo. 
outside the City $127 to $146; still < avg. for utilities in NC using same rate structure per UNC 
SoG Dashboard) 

Finance Director, Catherine Gwynn shared information concerning the City of Goldsboro’s finances 
including general fund and utility fund balances and credit rating.  

After discussion, Council came to the following consensus:  

Cut the Waynesborough Park donation of $18K and spread the funds equally among other funded 
agencies.    

Use a portion of the ARP ($1.7M) for the provision of services; place the remainder of ARP funds 
received this year ($2.7M) in a special revenue fund to be used as determined by Council. 

Use a loan for essential vehicles ($1.8M). 

Raising the property tax 3- cents per $100 valuation (38/year for $127K median value home in 
Goldsboro per U.S. Census Bureau information). 

There was no consensus to cut the membership dues to the Military Affairs Committee. Several 
members offered to pay their own dues.    

There was no consensus regarding raising the water and sewer utility rates 15% ($10/month inside the 
City $68 to $78; $19/mo outside the City $127 to $146; still <avg for utilities in NC using same rate 
structure per UNC SoG Dashboard).   

There being no further business, Council recessed the meeting at 5:33 p.m. until Monday, June 14, 2021 
at 3:00 p.m.  

   

       _________________________ 
       David Ham  
       Mayor Pro Tem  
 

       ________________________ 
       Laura Getz, MMC/NCCMC 
       City Clerk  



B











C

















D























E







F



ORDINANCE NO. 2021- 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE CAPITAL PROJECT FUND FOR  
PARKS & RECREATION PROJECTS FY19-24 (G1104) 

 
  WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Goldsboro recognizes there is a need 
to provide recreational facilities to its citizens and visitors to promote active lifestyles, 
reduce health costs, strengthen economies, create safer neighborhoods, provide green 
infrastructure and engage communities; and 
 

WHEREAS, on June 17, 2019 the City Council authorized the establishment of a 
capital project fund for the Parks and Recreation department to track longer term 
construction and improvements that are to be funded with various donations, 
sponsorships and other funding sources as approved for the scope of work the projects 
entailed; and 
 

WHEREAS, it is necessary to appropriate expenditures related to the 
improvements to the Southend Park, and this will be funded with revenue from the Vitus 
Group, LLC. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 
Goldsboro, North Carolina, that the Parks & Recreation Projects FY19-24 (G1104) is 
hereby amended: 
  

Parks & Recreation Projects FY19-24 (G1104)

Current Budget Amended Budget
Increase 

(Decrease)
Revenues:

Donations & Sponsorships - Bryan Multisports Complex 330,500.00$       330,500.00$       -$                  
Local Grants - GOWayneGo 56,892.53          56,892.53          -                    
Jefferson/Grand Closing Funds for Park -                    200,000.00         200,000.00         
Transfer from the General Fund 40,000.00          40,000.00          -                    

Total Revenues 427,392.53$       627,392.53$       200,000.00$       

Expenditures:
Construction & Improvements - Bryan Multisports Complex 330,500.00$       330,500.00$       -$                  
Construction & Improvements - GOWayneGo Projects 96,892.53          96,892.53          -                    
Construction & Improvements - Southend Park -                    200,000.00         200,000.00         

Total Expenditures 427,392.53$       627,392.53$       200,000.00$       

 
 

This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after this _______ day of 
_________________, 2021. 
 
       ______________________________
                    
       Mayor Pro Tem 
ATTEST: 
__________________________ 
City Clerk 



G



ORDINANCE NO. 2021- 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE GRANT PROJECT BUDGET FOR THE  
PARKS & RECREATION SPECIAL REVENUE FUND (G1107) 

 
  WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Goldsboro authorized the 
establishment of a grant project fund on June 15, 2020 to maintain special programs for 
the Parks and Recreation Department where donors and sponsors have restricted the use 
of the funding; and  

 
WHEREAS, the City has received various donations, bequests and grants from 

generous citizens and benefactors to help provide recreational activities at its facilities 
promoting the health, welfare and well-being of persons of all ages and abilities; and 

 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to appropriate expenditures related to these special 

programs and this will be funded with various donations, sponsorships and other funding 
sources restricted to the scope of programs developed. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 
Goldsboro, North Carolina, that the Parks & Recreation Special Revenue Fund (G1107) 
is hereby amended: 
  

Parks & Recreation Special Revenue Fund (G1107)

Current Budget Amended Budget
Increase 

(Decrease)
Revenues:

Donations & Sponsorships - Poultry/Beak Week -$                    -$                    -$                    
Donations & Sponsorships - Sports Tourism Programs 5,635.00              12,592.19            6,957.19              
Donations & Sponsorships - Challenger Football -                     2,500.00              2,500.00              
Donations & Sponsorships - Duke RX for Play 6,442.00              6,441.27              (0.73)                   
Transfer from the General Fund 8,631.00              8,631.00              -                     

Total Revenues 20,708.00$          30,164.46$          9,456.46$            

Expenditures:
Poultry/Beak Week Expenditures 1,068.00$            1,068.00$            -$                    
Sports Tourism Programs 11,921.00            18,878.19            6,957.19              
Challenger Football Program 1,277.00              3,777.00              2,500.00              
Duke RX for Play Program 6,442.00              6,441.27              (0.73)                   

Total Expenditures 20,708.00$          30,164.46$          9,456.46$            

 
 

 
This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after the _______ day of 
___________________ 2021. 
 

 
_____________________________ 
Mayor Pro Tem 

 
 
Attest:  
 
 
 
______________________________   
City Clerk  



H



ORDINANCE NO. 2021- 

AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING THE GRANT PROJECT BUDGET FOR THE 
COMMUNITY RELATIONS SPECIAL REVENUE FUND (G1108) 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Goldsboro supports special programs 
that unify and strengthen community relations and community involvement; 

WHEREAS, on June 15, 2020, the City Council of the City of Goldsboro 
authorized the establishment of a special revenue fund for Community Relations to 
account for restricted donations from  donors and sponsors of various community events; 
and  

WHEREAS, it is necessary to appropriate expenditures related to these special 
programs; and  

WHEREAS, these projects will be funded with various donations, sponsorships 
and other funding sources restricted to the scope of programs developed. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 
Goldsboro, North Carolina, that the Community Relations Special Revenue Fund 
(G1108) is hereby amended: 

Community Relations Special Revenue Fund (G1108)

Current Budget Amended Budget
Increase 

(Decrease)
Revenues:

Donations & Sponsorships - Human Relations Committee 130.00$             130.00$             -$  
Donations & Sponsorships - Interfaith Breakfast - 300.00               300.00               
Donations & Sponsorships - Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr. Commemoration 6,312.00            7,847.00            1,535.00            
Donations & Sponsorships - Mayor's Committee on Disabilities 4,507.00            4,507.00            - 
Donations & Sponsorships - Mayor's Youth Council 725.00               725.00               - 
Transfer from the General Fund 2,349.00            2,349.00            - 

Total Revenues 14,023.00$         15,858.00$         1,835.00$          

Expenditures:
Human Relations Committee Expenditures 167.00$             167.00$             -$  
Interfaith Breakfast Expenditures 311.00               611.00               300.00               
Martin Luther King, Jr. Commemoration  Expenditures 8,263.00            9,798.00            1,535.00            
Mayor's Committee on Disabilities Expenditures 4,507.00            4,507.00            - 
Mayor's Youth Council Expenditures 775.00               775.00               - 

Total Expenditures 14,023.00$         15,858.00$         1,835.00$          

This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after the ________ day of 
___________________ 2021. 

_____________________________ 
Mayor 

Attest: 

______________________________ 
City Clerk  



I



ORDINANCE NO. 2021- 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 
 FOR  FEDERAL AND STATE FORFEITURE ACCOUNTS (P3101) 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro Police Department receives revenues from federal and state 
forfeiture programs to help provide safety for the citizens and community and reduce criminal 
activity; and 
 
WHEREAS, on February 17, 2020, the City Council for the City of Goldsboro authorized the 
establishment of a special revenue fund to account for the forfeiture monies obtained through 
these sources to provide more accountability, transparency and a more efficient means to track 
and manage these funds; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to appropriate expenditures for the purchase of supplies, equipment, 
software, training and other eligible expenditures, and this will be funded with an appropriation 
of federal and state forfeiture revenue. 
 
THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina 
that the following special revenue project budget ordinance is hereby adopted: 

 
Federal and State Forfeiture Special Revenue Fund (P3101)

Current Budget Amended Budget
Increase 

(Decrease)
Revenues:

Federal Forfeiture Revenue 173,417.35$         188,812.66$         15,395.31$          
State Forfeiture Revenue 6,090.91              6,090.91              -                     
Investement Interest (Federal) 1,215.06              1,215.06              
Equipment Sales (WCPS Penalty) 4,696.46              4,696.46              

Total Revenues 179,508.26$         200,815.09$         21,306.83$          

Expenditures:
Federal Forfeiture Expend. 173,417.35$         190,027.72$         16,610.37$          
State Forfeiture Expend. 6,090.91              6,090.91              -                     
Wayne County Public Schools -                     4,696.46              4,696.46              

Total Expenditures 179,508.26$         200,815.09$         21,306.83$          

 
 
 

 Adopted this     day of      , 2021. 
 
 

___________________________   
Mayor Pro Tem 

 
Attested by: 
 
 
______________________ 
City Clerk    



J



ORDINANCE NO. 2021- 
 

 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE GRANT PROJECT FUND FOR THE  

HURRICANE FLORENCE FEMA 4393DR-NC GRANT PROJECT FUND (R1102)  
 

   WHEREAS, Hurricane Florence caused significant damage to City buildings, 
facilities, and utility infrastructure owned and maintained by the City; and 
 
  WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro and Wayne County were included in the 
Presidential Disaster Declaration on September 14, 2018; and  
 
 WHEREAS, on June 17, 2019 the City Council of the City of Goldsboro 
authorized the establishment of a grant project fund to capture the costs necessary to pay 
contractors and vendors that responded during the emergency to effect cleanup, and 
repair infrastructure, buildings and facilities owned and maintained by the City; and  
 

WHEREAS, staff has worked diligently for over 33 months with the North 
Carolina Department of Public Safety and FEMA to obligate project work, complete 
repairs, and subsequently requested project close out; and  

 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to reallocate project costs to specific project work as 

officially obligated by FEMA, and to repay transfers from the Utility Fund and General 
Fund, and these expenditures will be funded with Federal revenue from FEMA. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 
Goldsboro, North Carolina, that the Hurricane Florence FEMA 4393DR-NC (R1102) be 
amended as follows: 
Hurricane Florence FEMA 4393DR-NC (R1102)

Current Budget Amended Budget
Increase 

(Decrease)
Revenues:

Federal Grants 387,718.20$         2,340,773.46$      1,953,055.26$      
Insurance Proceeds 101,220.99           99,757.86            (1,463.13)             
Transfer from General Fund 447,576.89           447,576.89          -                     
Transfer from Utility Fund 1,715,968.44        1,715,968.44        -                     

Total Revenues 2,652,484.52$      4,604,076.65$      1,951,592.13$      

Expenditures:
FEMA Expenditures 2,652,484.52$      424,830.26$         (2,227,654.26)$     
PW-1040 (Cat A - Debris) -                      461,547.24          461,547.24          
PW-1550 (Cat B - Emergency Response) -                      146,645.50          146,645.50          
PW-755 (Cat C - Roads & Bridges) -                      14,142.16            14,142.16            
PW-399 (Cat F - Sewer Line Damage) -                      1,286,850.73        1,286,850.73        
PW-979 (Cat F - Water Reclamation) -                      21,855.42            21,855.42            
PW-613 (Cat G - Elmwood Cemetery) -                      7,962.45              7,962.45              
PW-642 (Cat G - Willow Dale Cemetery) -                      12,655.14            12,655.14            
PW-1794 (Cat F - Water Treatment Plant) -                      137,634.64          137,634.64          
PW-984 (Cat F - Pumping Stations) -                      138,360.98          138,360.98          
Transfer to General Fund -                      563,410.17          563,410.17          
Transfer to Utility fund -                      1,388,181.96        1,388,181.96        

Total Expenditures 2,652,484.52$      4,604,076.65$      1,951,592.13$      

 
 

This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after this _______ day of 
_________________, 2021. 
 

_____________________________ 
Mayor Pro Tem 

 
Attest:  
 
______________________________   
City Clerk  
 



K





ORDINANCE NO. 2021- 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE GRANT PROJECT FUND FOR THE  
FY2016 TIGER DISCRETIONARY GRANT CAPITAL PROJECT FUND (R1103)  

 
   WHEREAS, the City Council authorized the establishment of the FY2016 
TIGER Discretionary Grant Capital Project Fund (R1103) on May 20, 2019 after 
formally receiving and accepting the federal grant award; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is necessary to reallocate revenue appropriations according to 
anticipated revenue sources and according to anticipated amounts, and this be funded 
with revenue from transfers from the General Fund, Utility Fund, and Stormwater Fund, 
and a net reduction of expenditures. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 
Goldsboro, North Carolina, that the FY2016 TIGER Discretionary Grant Capital Project 
Fund (R1103) be amended as follows: 
 
FY2016 TIGER Discretionary Grant Project Fund (R1103)

Current Budget Amended Budget
Increase 

(Decrease)
Revenues:

Federal Grants-TIGER VIII 5,000,000.00$      5,000,000.00$    -$                
Loan Proceeds 1,500,000.00        -                    (1,500,000.00)   
Transfer from General Fund 614,439.00           1,019,695.00      405,256.00       
Transfer from Utility Fund 238,688.00           784,688.00         546,000.00       
Transfer from Stormwater Fund -                      185,000.00         185,000.00       
Transfer from Downtown District Fund 100,000.00           100,000.00         -                  
State Grants 100,000.00           100,000.00         -                  

Total Revenues 7,553,127.00$      7,189,383.00$    (363,744.00)$    

Expenditures:
Design (Phase I) 358,376.00$         -$                  (358,376.00)$    
Construction (Phase II) 3,300,000.00        3,300,000.00      -                  
Loan Expense 20,000.00            -                    (20,000.00)       
Construction - The HUB 965,010.00           965,010.00         -                  
Design - Streetscape & The HUB 980,000.00           980,000.00         -                  
Const & Design - GWTA Concourse 600,000.00           600,000.00         -                  
Construction - Wayfinding Signage 450,000.00           450,000.00         -                  
Project Contingency 460,741.00           460,741.00         -                  
Construction - Stage at The HUB 419,000.00           419,000.00         -                  
Construction - Non-TIGER Eligible -                      14,632.00          14,632.00        

Total Expenditures 7,553,127.00$      7,189,383.00$    (363,744.00)$    

 
  

 
This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after this _______ day of 
_________________, 2021. 
 
 
 
      _____________________________ 

     Mayor Pro Tem 
 
 
Attest: ________________________ 
City Clerk 



L



ORDINANCE NO. 2021- 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE GRANT PROJECT FUND FOR THE  
CORONAVIRUS AID, RELIEF AND ECONOMIC SECURITY (CARES) ACT 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND (R1105)  
 

WHEREAS, Congress adopted the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security 
(CARES) Act (P.L. 116-136) established the Coronavirus Relief Fund (CRF) on March 
27, 2020 which included over $4 billion in aid to the State of North Carolina; and 

 
WHEREAS, on May 4, 2020 the North Carolina General Assembly passed Session Law 
2020-4 to begin allocating these dollars throughout the state, and as amended by SL 
2020-80 (July 1, 2020) allocated $300 million to counties and required counties to pass at 
least 25% of their total allocation to their municipalities; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Goldsboro adopted a resolution on 
September 8, 2020 entering into a memo of understanding with Wayne County as a 
subrecipient of CARES Act funding in the amount of $966, 687.69 which stipulates the 
period of performance is from March 1, 2020 through December 31, 2021; and  
 
WHEREAS, City shall utilize the funds for public health expenses for personal protective 
equipment, payroll expenses, COVID-19 related public health measures, COVID-19 
economic support measures, and grants to nonprofits in support of COVID-19 related 
support as required by the federal and state legislation and the memo of understanding; 
and  
 
WHEREAS, in order to start finalizing the grant it is necessary to appropriate 
expenditures in categories that were not fully funded for Public Health PPE and Public 
Health Measures, and this will be funded with reductions in other expenditure categories. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Goldsboro, 
North Carolina, that the Coronavirus Aid, Relief and Economic Security (CARES) Act 
Special Revenue Fund (R1105) be amended as follows: 
 
Coronavirus Aid, Relief and Economic Security (CARES) Act (R1105)

Current Budget Amended Budget
Increase 

(Decrease)
Revenues:

Federal Grants 966,687.69$       966,687.69$       -$                  
Total Revenues 966,687.69$       966,687.69$       -$                  

Expenditures:
Public Health (#2) (PPE) 36,361.69$         45,988.53$         9,626.84$          
Payrol Expense (#3) (PE) 196,692.00         196,656.74         (35.26)               
Public Health Measures (#4) (PHM) 387,737.00         429,460.60         41,723.60          
Small Business Grants (#5) (PES) 100,000.00         57,500.00          (42,500.00)         
Environmental Services (#6) (OTH) 45,897.00          37,081.82          (8,815.18)           
Nonprofit Agency Support (#7) (GTN) 200,000.00         200,000.00         -                    

Total Expenditures 966,687.69$       966,687.69$       -$                  

 
 

This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after this _______ day of 
_________________, 2021. 
 
       ______________________________
                    
       Mayor Pro Tem 
ATTEST: 
__________________________ 
City Clerk 



M



ORDINANCE NO. 2021- 
 

AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING THE GRANT PROJECT FUND FOR THE  
AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN ACT OF 2021 (ARP) SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 

(R1107)  
 

WHEREAS, on March 11, 2021, the American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 (ARP) was 
signed into law by President Biden; and 
 
WHEREAS, the American Rescue Plan allocates $8,813,514 for the City of Goldsboro as 
an entitlement city; and  
 
WHEREAS, the grant funds are intended to provide eligible state, local, territorial, and 
Tribal governments with a substantial infusion of resources to meet pandemic response 
needs and rebuild a stronger, and more equitable economy as the country recovers; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro as recipient may use these funds to support public 
health expenditures, address negative economic impacts caused by the public health 
emergency, replace lost public sector revenue, provide premium pay for essential 
workers, and to invest in water, sewer, and broadband infrastructure, and 
 
WHEREAS, on May 17, 2021 the City Council of the City of Goldsboro accepted the 
grant funds from the American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 and understands that the grant 
funds will be available through December 31, 2024; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro shall comply with the terms of the grant award and 
with North Carolina state law with regards to allowable expenditures, and shall comply 
with all local ordinance and policy in executing the grant. 
 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to appropriate expenditures in order to begin fulfilling the 
terms of the grant, and this will be funded with federal grant revenue. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Goldsboro, 
North Carolina, that the American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 (ARP) Special Revenue Fund 
(R1107) be adopted as follows: 
 

American Rescue Plan (R1107)
Current Budget

Revenues:
Federal Grants 8,813,514.00$      

Total Revenues 8,813,514.00$      

Expenditures:
Public Health -$                    
Negative Economic Impacts -                      
Lost Public Sector Revenue 1,664,500.00        
Premium Pay for Essential Workers -                      
Water, Sewer, Broadband Infrastructure 2,558,994.00        
Contingency 4,590,020.00        

Total Expenditures 8,813,514.00$      

 
 

 
This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after this _______ day of 
_________________, 2021. 
 
       ______________________________
                    Mayor Pro Tem 
ATTEST: 
__________________________ 
City Clerk 



N





O



ORDINANCE NO. 2021- 
 

AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING THE GRANT PROJECT FUND FOR THE  
STORMWATER CAPITAL PROJECT FUND (T2201)  

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Goldsboro adopted the creation of the 
Stormwater enterprise fund with the FY2017-2018 budget ordinance to address mandated 
Federal and State compliance requirements to ensure responsible water and resource 
management, environmental protection and regulatory requirements; and  
 
WHEREAS, there is a need to establish a capital project fund for the forthcoming 
Stormwater needs that have been identified; and  
 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to appropriate expenditures in order to begin satisfying the 
long-term mission of the Stormwater enterprise, and this will be funded with a transfer 
from the Stormwater fund. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Goldsboro, 
North Carolina, that the Stormwater Capital Projects Fund (T2201) be adopted as 
follows: 

Stormwater Capital Project Fund (T2201)

Current Budget
Revenues:

Transfer from Stormwater Fund 488,000.00$         
Total Revenues 488,000.00$         

Expenditures:
Contingency 488,000.00$         

Total Expenditures 488,000.00$         

 
 

This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after this _______ day of 
_________________, 2021. 
 
       ______________________________
                    
       Mayor Pro Tem 
ATTEST: 
__________________________ 
City Clerk 



P



ORDINANCE NO. 2021- 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE GRANT PROJECT FUND FOR THE WATER 
LINE REPLACEMENT AND BOOSTER PUMP STATION (BPS) PROJECT (W1111) 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro owns and maintains a water system plant to 

provide safe drinking water to its citizens and customers; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to replace existing water lines and install a booster 

pump station to improve fire flow, system pressure and water quality.  It is further 
proposed to replace approximately 17,800 LF of 6 through 10-inch water lines along 
Salem Church Road, Ash Street, Slocumb Street, and Elm Street in the City’s distribution 
system, as well as install a new Booster Pump Station to increase the pressure and supply 
in the New Hope Area; and  

 
WHEREAS, the City applied for and was awarded a loan from the North Carolina 

Drinking Water State Revolving Fund; and 
 
WHEREAS, on July 15, 2019, the City Council of the City of Goldsboro 

authorized the establishment of a capital project fund to manage the expenditures for the 
project; and   

 
 WHEREAS, it is necessary to appropriate the expenditures for the purchase of 

easements and this will be funded with a transfer from the Utility Fund. 
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 
Goldsboro that pursuant to Section 13.2 of Chapter 159 of the North Carolina General 
Statutes, the following Capital Project Ordinance for the Water Line Replacement and 
Booster Pump Station (BPS) Project is hereby amended: 
 
Water Line Replacement and Booster Pump Station (BPS) Project (W111)

Current Budget Amended Budget
Increase 

(Decrease)
Revenues:

State Revolving Loan 3,610,000.00$    3,610,000.00$    -$                  
Transfer from Utility Fund 72,200.00          107,200.00         35,000.00          

Total Revenues 3,682,200.00$    3,717,200.00$    35,000.00$         

Expenditures:
Engineering 513,880.00$       513,880.00$       -$                  
Construction - Water Improvements 3,096,120.00      3,131,120.00      35,000.00          
Loan Expense 72,200.00          72,200.00          -                    

Total Expenditures 3,682,200.00$    3,717,200.00$    35,000.00$         

 
 
This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after this _______ day of 
_________________, 2021. 
 
       ______________________________
                    
       Mayor Pro Tem 
ATTEST: 
__________________________ 
City Clerk 

     
 
         
 
 
 
 
 



Q



ORDINANCE NO. 2021- 
 

AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING THE GRANT  
PROJECT FUND FOR THE 2” GALVANIZED WATER LINE REPLACEMENT 

(WIF-1979) CAPITAL PROJECT FUND (W1113) 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro owns and maintains a water system plant and 
distribution system to provide safe drinking water to its citizens and customers; and 

 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to replace old existing 2” galvanized water lines 

within the City’s system; and  
  
WHEREAS, the City applied for and has a letter of intent to fund a loan from the 

North Carolina Department of Environmental Quality; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to appropriate the expenditures for the preliminary 

engineering to adhere to the required milestones of the award; and  
 
WHEREAS, this will be funded with an appropriation of a transfer from the 

Utility fund. 
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 
Goldsboro that pursuant to Section 13.2 of Chapter 159 of the North Carolina General 
Statutes, the following Capital Project Ordinance for the 2” Galvanized Water Line 
Replacement (WIF-1979) Capital Project Fund (W1113) is hereby adopted: 
  
2" Galvanized Water Line Replacement (WIF-1979) Capital Project Fund (W1113)

Current Budget
Revenues:

State Revolving Loan -$                  
Transfer from Utility Fund 30,000.00          

Total Revenues 30,000.00$         

Expenditures:
Engineering 30,000.00$         
Construction - Water Improvements -                    
Loan Expense -                    

Total Expenditures 30,000.00$         

 
 
 
This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after this _______ day of 
_________________, 2021. 
 
       ______________________________
                    
       Mayor Pro Tem 
ATTEST: 
__________________________ 
City Clerk 
 
         
 
 
 
 
 



R





 

 1 

               
ORDINANCE NO. 2021 - 

 
 

 AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE BUDGET ORDINANCE OF THE    
CITY OF GOLDSBORO FOR THE 2020-21 FISCAL YEAR 

 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Goldsboro adopted the FY2020-21 Annual 
Operating Budget on June 17, 2020; and 
 
 WHEREAS, amendments may become necessary as circumstances arise; and 
 

WHEREAS, it is necessary to amend the General Fund, Utility Fund, and Occupancy Tax Fund; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is necessary to appropriate funds for expenditures in Information Technology, 
Public Works Administration, Finance, Streets, Street Paving, Solid Waste, Engineering, Fire, Police, 
Non-Recurring Capital Outlay, Parks and Recreation, Golf, Transfers and Shared Services, and Debt 
Service within the General Fund for utilities, insurance, worker’s compensation claims, outside repairs, 
overtime, part time temporary salaries, insurance repair claims, miscellaneous equipment, transfers to 
capital projects, and other operational expenses; and 
 

WHEREAS, this will be funded with additional revenues from miscellaneous revenue from the 
Vitus Group, LLC, NC DOT traffic signal reimbursement, Hurricane Matthew FEMA reimbursements, 
insurance proceeds, charges for services, and miscellaneous grant income, and a reduction of 
expenditures; and 
 

WHEREAS, it is necessary to appropriate funds for expenditures in Water Treatment, Water 
Reclamation, and Compost divisions within the Utility Fund for utilities, insurance, worker’s 
compensation claims, shift differential pay, insurance deductible, transfers to capital projects, and other 
operational expenses; and 
 

WHEREAS, this will be funded with additional revenues from Hurricane Matthew FEMA 
reimbursements, cell phone tower lease income, and grant income from North Carolina for the Weir 
project, and with a reduction of expenditures; and 
 

WHEREAS, it is necessary to appropriate funds for expenditures in Travel and Tourism for 
operational supplies; and 
 

WHEREAS, this will be funded with additional grant revenue from the NC Sports Association. 
 
  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Goldsboro, 
North Carolina, that: 
 
GENERAL FUND Current Amended Difference
Information Technology (1030)
All Other Operating Expenditures 1,843,937.06$       1,843,937.06$       -$                      
Salaries & Wages Part-Time -                         15,000.00              15,000.00             
Telephone 260,000.00            245,000.00            (15,000.00)            
Repairs Insurance Claims -                         23,947.00              23,947.00             

Total Expend. - Information Tech. 2,103,937.06$       2,127,884.06$       23,947.00$           

Public Works Administration (1111)
FY20-21 Adopted Budget 6/17/20 369,974.00$          369,974.00$          -$                      
Electricity 78,750.00              87,750.00              9,000.00$             
Natural Gas 18,750.00              30,750.00              12,000.00$           

Total Expend. - Public Works Admin. 467,474.00$          488,474.00$          21,000.00$           
 

 
 
 
 



 

 2 

GENERAL FUND Current Amended Difference
Garage (1114)
FY20-21 Adopted Budget 6/17/20 2,038,969.00$       2,038,969.00$       -$                      
Garage Credits (1115) (1,478,825.00)        (1,478,825.00)        -                        
Workers' Compensation 2,549.00                37,789.00              35,240.00             
Outside Repairs 80,000.00              132,000.00            52,000.00             

Total Expend. - Garage 642,693.00$          729,933.00$          87,240.00$           

Finance (2111)
FY20-21 Adopted Budget 6/17/20 1,168,460.00$       1,168,460.00$       -$                      
Office Supply Credits (7,357.00)               (7,357.00)               -                        
Postage Credits (32,140.00)             (32,140.00)             -                        
Salaries & Wages Part-Time 24,000.00              54,736.00              30,736.00             
Postage 25,000.00              27,000.00              2,000.00               
Copy Machine Cost 2,839.00                5,439.00                2,600.00               
Contract Services -                         34,000.00              34,000.00             
Tax Listing Fees Wayne County 266,491.00            270,891.00            4,400.00               
Tax Listing Fees NCVTS 57,000.00              72,897.00              15,897.00             
Tax Foreclosure Costs Wayne County -                         4,400.00                4,400.00               

Total Expend. - Finance 1,504,293.00$       1,598,326.00$       94,033.00$           

Street Maintenance (4134)
FY20-21 Adopted Budget 6/17/20 940,424.00$          940,424.00$          -$                      
Workers' Compensation 8,077.00                138,977.00            130,900.00           

Total Expend. - Street Maintenance 948,501.00$          1,079,401.00$       130,900.00$         

Street Paving (4136)
FY20-21 Adopted Budget 6/17/20 -$                       -$                       -$                      
Paving Multi-Use Areas 187,500.00            -                         (187,500.00)          

Total Expend. - Street Utilities 187,500.00$          -$                       (187,500.00)$        

Solid Waste (4143)
FY20-21 Adopted Budget 6/17/20 3,590,585.00$       3,590,585.00$       -$                      
Workers' Compensation 10,267.00              120,267.00            110,000.00           
Repairs Insurance Claims -                         23,737.00              23,737.00             

Total Expend. - Solid Waste 3,600,852.00$       3,734,589.00$       133,737.00$         

Engineering (4172)
All Other Operating Expenditures 1,168,807.16$       1,168,807.16$       -$                      
Repairs Insurance Claims -                         19,100.00              19,100.00             

Total Expend. - Engineering 1,168,807.16$       1,187,907.16$       19,100.00$           

Non-Recurring Capital Outlay (7315)
FY20-21 Adopted Budget 6/17/20 405,785.00$          405,785.00$          -$                      
Economic Development Incentive-Alta Foods 5,000.00                9,063.00                4,063.00               
Sale of Land Proceeds-Wayne County -                         27,478.00              27,478.00             

Total Expend. - Non-Recurring Cap. Out. 410,785.00$          442,326.00$          31,541.00$           

Parks and Recreation (7460)
All Other Operating Expenditures 3,222,095.15$       3,222,095.15$       -$                      
Workers' Compensation 8,260.00                30,360.00              22,100.00             
Repairs Insurance Claims -                         150.00                   150.00                  

Total Expend. - Parks and Recreation 3,230,355.15$       3,252,605.15$       22,250.00$           

Golf Course (7461)
FY20-21 Adopted Budget 6/17/20 528,496.00$          528,496.00$          -$                      
Pro Shop Expense 30,000.00              44,000.00              14,000.00             
Concessionaire Resale Golf -                         2,000.00                2,000.00               

Total Expend. - Golf Course 558,496.00$          574,496.00$          16,000.00$           
 

 



 

 3 

Fire (5120)
All Other Operating Expenditures 6,151,341.36$       6,151,341.36$       -$                      
Salaries & Wages Overtime 47,000.00              125,342.00            78,342.00             
Workers' Compensation 54,363.24              73,363.24              19,000.00             
Miscellaneous Equipment 81,533.75              88,711.75              7,178.00               

Total Expend. - Fire 6,334,238.35$       6,438,758.35$       104,520.00$         

Police (6121)
All Other Operating Expenditures 9,573,568.11$       9,573,568.11$       -$                      
Workers' Compensation 25,939.00              91,939.00              66,000.00             

Total Expend. - Police 9,599,507.11$       9,665,507.11$       66,000.00$           

Transfers (8101)
FY20-21 Adopted Budget 6/17/20 1,000.00$              1,000.00$              -$                      
Transfers to Capital Projects 22,607.18              210,107.18            187,500.00           

Total Expend. - Transfers 23,607.18$            211,107.18$          187,500.00$         

Debt Service (8111)
FY20-21 Adopted Budget 6/17/20 3,567,334.00$       3,567,334.00$       -$                      
Lease Purchase Payment 1,290,958.00         1,304,848.00         13,890.00             

Total Expend. - Debt Service 4,858,292.00$       4,872,182.00$       13,890.00$           

All Other Expenditures 18,437,864.11$     18,437,864.11$     -$                      
Total Expenditures - General Fund 42,862,916.11$     43,627,074.11$     764,158.00$         

Revenues
Tax Revenues 17,153,130.00$     17,153,130.00$     -$                      
Licenses and Permits 375,525.00            375,525.00            -                        
Revenue from Other Agencies 15,014,633.00       15,426,874.00       412,241.00           
Charges for Services 4,969,581.00         4,985,581.00         16,000.00             
Capital Returns 1,361,930.00         1,438,908.00         76,978.00             
Miscellaneous Revenue 490,500.00            749,439.00            258,939.00           
Shared Services 3,046,957.00         3,046,957.00         -                        
Appropriated Fund Balance 450,660.11            450,660.11            -                        

Total Revenues - General Fund 42,862,916.11$     43,627,074.11$     764,158.00$         
 

 



 

 4 

UTILITY FUND Current Amended Difference
Water Treatment (4176)
All Other Operating Expenditures 2,938,571.81$       2,938,571.81$       -$                      
Salaries & Wages Shift Differential -                         5,100.00                5,100.00               
Postage 1,000.00                5,500.00                4,500.00               
Building Maintenance 25,000.00              45,000.00              20,000.00             
Software License Fees -                         4,000.00                4,000.00               
Insurance Deductible -                         8,260.00                8,260.00               

Total Expend. - Water Treatment 2,964,571.81$       3,006,431.81$       41,860.00$           

Water Reclamation (4177)
All Other Operating Expenditures 3,437,963.91$       3,437,963.91$       -$                      
Salaries & Wages Shift Differential -                         4,900.00                4,900.00               
Workers' Compensation 4,328.00                6,328.00                2,000.00               
Multi Peril Insurance 211,730.00            241,730.00            30,000.00             

Total Expend. - Water Reclamation 3,654,021.91$       3,690,921.91$       36,900.00$           

Compost (4179)
FY20-21 Adopted Budget 6/17/20 786,024.00$          786,024.00$          -$                      
Electricity 52,000.00              66,000.00              14,000.00             

Total Expend. - Compost 838,024.00$          852,024.00$          14,000.00$           

Transfers (8101)
FY20-21 Adopted Budget 6/17/20 2,938,105.00$       2,938,105.00$       -$                      
Transfers to Fund Balance 214,475.00            202,718.00            (11,757.00)            
Transfers to Capital Projects 650,000.00            745,000.00            95,000.00             

Total Expend. - Transfers 3,802,580.00$       3,885,823.00$       83,243.00$           

Revenues
Revenue from Other Agencies -$                       115,685.00$          115,685.00$         
Charges for Services 18,068,818.00       18,068,818.00       -                        
Capital Returns 32,542.00              92,860.00              60,318.00             
Miscellaneous Revenue 301,025.00            301,025.00            -                        
Fund Balance 142,936.74            142,936.74            

Total Revenues - Utility Fund 18,545,321.74$     18,721,324.74$     176,003.00$         
 

OCCUPANCY TAX FUND Current Amended Difference
Travel & Tourism
FY20-21 Adopted Budget 6/17/20 389,899.44$          389,899.44$          -$                      
Operational Supplies 18,603.56              23,137.56              4,534.00               

Total Expend. - Travel & Tourism 408,503.00$          413,037.00$          4,534.00$             

Revenues
Charges for Services 1,031,800.00$       1,031,800.00$       -$                      
Capital Returns 5,500.00                5,500.00                -                        
Miscellaneous Revenue 6,581.00                11,115.00              4,534.00               
Appropriated Fund Balance 155,963.00            155,963.00            -                        

Total Revenues - Occupancy Tax Fund 1,199,844.00$       1,204,378.00$       4,534.00$             
 

This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after this _______ day of _________________, 
2021. 
 
       ______________________________  
                    Mayor Pro Tem 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
__________________________ 
City Clerk 



S





RESOLUTION NO. 2021- 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING FINANCING TERMS FOR THE FY20 AND 
FY21 ROLLING STOCK INSTALLMENT FINANCING LOAN  

WITH BRANCH BANKING & TRUST ALSO KNOWN AS TRUIST  
FOR $1,650,532 (DEBT 037-GE)  

 
WHEREAS The City of Goldsboro, NC (“Borrower”) has previously determined to undertake a 
project for the financing of various vehicles and equipment (the “Project”), and the Finance Officer 
has now presented a proposal for the financing of such Project. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, as follows: 

1. The Borrower hereby determines to finance the Project through Truist Bank (“Lender”) in 
accordance with the proposal dated June 7, 2021. The amount financed shall not exceed 
$1,650,532.00, the annual interest rate (in the absence of default or change in tax status) 
shall not exceed 1.18%, and the financing term shall not exceed fifty-nine (59) months 
from closing. 

2. All financing contracts and all related documents for the closing of the financing (the 
“Financing Documents”) shall be consistent with the foregoing terms. All officers and 
employees of the Borrower are hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver any 
Financing Documents, and to take all such further action as they may consider necessary 
or desirable, to carry out the financing of the Project as contemplated by the proposal and 
this resolution. 

3. The Finance Officer is hereby authorized and directed to hold executed copies of the 
Financing Documents until the conditions for the delivery of the Financing Documents 
have been completed to such officer's satisfaction. The Finance Officer is authorized to 
approve changes to any Financing Documents previously signed by Borrower officers or 
employees, provided that such changes shall not substantially alter the intent of such 
documents or certificates from the intent expressed in the forms executed by such officers. 
The Financing Documents shall be in such final forms as the Finance Officer shall approve, 
with the Finance Officer’s release of any Financing Document for delivery constituting 
conclusive evidence of such officer's final approval of the Document’s final form. 

4. The Borrower shall not take or omit to take any action the taking or omission of which 
shall cause its interest payments on this financing to be includable in the gross income for 
federal income tax purposes of the registered owners of the interest payment obligations. 

5. The Borrower intends that the adoption of this resolution will be a declaration of the 
Borrower’s official intent to reimburse expenditures for the Project that are to be financed 
from the proceeds of the Lender financing described above. The Borrower intends that 
funds that have been advanced, or that may be advanced, from the Borrower’s general fund 
or any other Borrower fund related to the Project, for project costs may be reimbursed from 
the financing proceeds. 

6. All prior actions of Borrower officers in furtherance of the purposes of this resolution are 
hereby ratified, approved and confirmed. All other resolutions (or parts thereof) in conflict 
with this resolution are hereby repealed, to the extent of the conflict. This resolution shall 
take effect immediately. 
 

This resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after the _____ day of _________ 2021. 
 

________________________ 
Mayor Pro Tem 

 
Attested by: 
 
 
____________________ 
City Clerk 



RESOLUTION NO. 2021- 
 

A RESOLUTION DESIGNATING BRANCH BANKING & TRUST, ALSO 
KNOWN AS TRUIST AS A DEPOSITORY FOR THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO 

 
WHEREAS, there is a need for the City to establish a depository relationship with Branch Banking 
& Trust also known as Truist. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, as follows: 

1. Pursuant to N.C. General Statute §159-31, the governing board of each local government 
shall make the designation for its official depositories. 

2. The City Council of the City of Goldsboro hereby declares that Branch Banking & Trust 
also know as Truist shall be a depository for the City of Goldsboro.  

3. The City Manager and the Finance Director are hereby authorized to execute any necessary 
documents to complete the establishment of the depository relationship. 

4. This resolution shall become effective upon the date of passage. 
 

This resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after the _____ day of _________ 2021. 
 

________________________ 
Mayor Pro Tem 

 
Attested by: 
 
 
____________________ 
City Clerk 



BB&T               Branch Banking & Trust Company 

 Governmental Finance  
5130 Parkway Plaza Boulevard 

 Charlotte, North Carolina 28217 
          Phone (704) 954-1700  

Fax (704) 954-1799  
June 7, 2021 
 
Ms. Catherine Gwynn 
City of Goldsboro, NC 
PO Drawer A 
Goldsboro, NC 27530 
 
Dear Ms. Gwynn: 
 
Truist Bank (“Lender”) is pleased to offer this proposal for the financing requested by the City of Goldsboro, 
NC (“Borrower”).   
 
PROJECT: Rolling Stock 
 
AMOUNT: $1,650,532.00 
 
TERM: 59 months 
 
INTEREST RATE: 1.18% 
 
TAX STATUS: Tax Exempt – Bank Qualified  
 
PAYMENTS: Interest: Annual 
  Principal: Annual 
 
INTEREST RATE 
CALCULATION: 30/360 
 
SECURITY: Vehicles and Equipment 
 
PREPAYMENT 
TERMS: Prepayable in whole at any time without penalty 
 
RATE 
EXPIRATION: July 30, 2021 
 
DOCUMENTATION/ 
LEGAL REVIEW 
FEE:  N/A 
 
FUNDING: Proceeds will be deposited into an account held at Lender pending disbursement 

unless equipment is delivered prior to closing. 
 



  
 

DOCUMENTATION: Lender proposes to use its standard form financing contracts and related documents 
for this installment financing.  We shall provide a sample of those documents to 
you should Lender be the successful proposer.  

 
  The financing documents shall include provisions that will outline appropriate 

changes to be implemented in the event that this transaction is determined to be 
taxable or non-bank qualified in accordance with the Internal Revenue Service 
Code.  All documentation must be deemed appropriate by Lender before closing.  

 
REPORTING  
REQUIREMENTS: Lender will require financial statements to be delivered within 270 days after the 

conclusion of each fiscal year-end throughout the term of the financing. 
 
Should we become the successful proposer, we have attached the form of a resolution that your governing 
board can use to award the financing to Lender.  If your board adopts this resolution, then Lender shall not 
require any further board action prior to closing the transaction. 
 
Lender shall have the right to cancel this offer by notifying the Borrower of its election to do so (whether this 
offer has previously been accepted by the Borrower) if at any time prior to the closing there is a material 
adverse change in the Borrower’s financial condition, if we discover adverse circumstances of which we are 
currently unaware, if we are unable to agree on acceptable documentation with the Borrower or if there is a 
change in law (or proposed change in law) that changes the economic effect of this financing to Lender.  
 
Costs of counsel for the Borrower and any other costs will be the responsibility of the Borrower. 
 
The stated interest rate assumes that the Borrower expects to borrow no more than $10,000,000 in the current 
calendar year and that the financing will qualify as qualified tax-exempt financing under the Internal Revenue 
Code. Lender reserves the right to terminate this bid or to negotiate a mutually acceptable interest rate if the 
financing is not qualified tax-exempt financing. 
 
We appreciate the opportunity to offer this financing proposal. Please call me at (803) 413-4991 with your 
questions and comments.  We look forward to hearing from you. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Truist Bank 

 
 
Andrew G. Smith 
Senior Vice President 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



T







City of Goldsboro  
Departmental Monthly Reports 

May 2021  

1. Community Relations
2. Downtown Development
3. Engineering
4. Finance
5. Fire
6. Human Resources
7. Information Technology
8. Inspections
9. Paramount Theater-GEC

10. Parks and Recreation
11. Planning
12. Police
13. Public Utilities
14. Public Works
15. Travel and Tourism

Item U 



 

 
 

1 

COMMUNITY RELATIONS DEPARTMENT 
May 2021 
Prepared by:  Felecia Williams, Interim Community Development & Relations Director 
Date Prepared:  June 15, 2021 
 
• On May 20, 2021, the Mayor’s Committee for Persons with Disabilities (MCPD) met in person to discuss official 

business involving persons with disabilities. The 24th Annual Disability Awareness Walk was held on May 5, 2021.  The 
Disability Awareness Walk Subcommittee met on May 5, 2021 immediately following the walk.  The Education 
Subcommittee met in person on May 11, 2021 discussing ways in which the MCPD can educate the community on 
various disabilities.  On May 6, 2021, MCPD Member Wanda Becton and MCPD Vice-Chair Pier Protz spoke at the 
Ruritan Club meeting on behalf of the MCPD Education Subcommittee. 
 

• On May 11, 2021, the Commission on Community Relations and Development (CCRD) met in person for the regular 
monthly meeting.   The CCRD Executive Board met on May 10, 2021 and discussed subcommittees and the upcoming 
monthly meeting.  The Economic Development Subcommittee did not meet this month. 
 

• The Goldsboro Youth Council met in person on May 5, 2021 at 5:00 pm at the Goldsboro Event Center for the final 
session and End of Year awards.  

 
• Community Relations Activities:  National Day of Prayer recordings.  Airdate was May 6, 2021. 

 
• Community Relations Activities: Taste of Wayne 2021 1st Planning Meeting (as committee member) on May 25, 2021.  

 
• Community Relations Activities:  CALM regular monthly meeting (committee member) on May 25, 2021.  

 
• Community Development Activities: The Department held the second public hearing for the Annual Action Plan FY 

2021-2022 at City Council’s regular meeting on May 3, 2021.  Consultant Lea Henry of Two Rivers Development 
Partners, LLC, led the public hearing.   

 
• The Department received four (4) housing complaints and received twelve (12) requests for assistance for the month 

of May. The requests for assistance involved wheelchair ramp, homelessness, utilities assistance, and homebuyer 
assistance.      

Housing Complaints 0 4 2 0 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2
Consumer & Other 2 8 21 18 12 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 12

Oct Nov Dec AVGMay Jun Jul Aug Sep2021 Complaints Jan Feb Mar Apr

Oct Nov Dec AVGMay Jun Jul Aug Sep2020 Complaints Jan Feb Mar Apr



1 

Downtown Development Department 
May 2021 Monthly Report 
Prepared By: Robin Gartland 
Date Prepared: June 7, 2021 
 
 Current Downtown Development Office Projects Staff Worked On Over the Month Include:  

• Met with (or conversed by email/phone) 7 potential new property acquisition projects/persons and/or business 
interests regarding downtown. 

• Over the past month, staff visited downtown businesses 12 different times.   
• Extended Offer to LFNC Candidate. 
• Working with the Assistant City Manager to facilitate administrative needs of the GWTA Roof Addition. 
• Continued discussions of DGDC office relocation opportunity. 
• Economic Development Assessment with NC Commerce. 
• Completed 2 applications for the Lowe’s 100 Hometowns grant program. 
• Downtown Event Planning. 
• RFP development for 400 block of S. Center. 

Downtown Development Office Events or Activities that Staff Administered or Assisted During the Month:           

• Assisted with GWTA Bid Document Completion. 

• Downtown Merchants Strategic Planning Meeting. 

• Staff is working on completing an RFP, marketing the 400 block of S. Center Street for residential, 
medium density, infill development. Discussing economic development planning with NC Department 
of Commerce to determine next steps in creating a plan. 

• Hosted the SJAFB Honorary Commander Meeting. 

• Staff participated in a Problem House Meeting update. 
DGDC Events or Activities that Staff Administered or Assisted During the Month:  

• Facilitated and attended the following monthly meetings: DGDC Board Meeting (05/19), DGDC Executive 
Committee Meeting (05/12), DGDC Design, DGDC EV and DGDC Promotions Committee Meetings, (05/11). 

• Staff received a draft proposal for Union Station development. 
• Downtown Promo Video Production & Use with plans to air as a commercial on WRAL. 

Upcoming Events/Activities:  
• Working with NC Commerce to produce an Economic Development 2-day Assessment.   
• Will work with IT in redesigning and refreshing the DGDC Website in the next 6 months. 
• Official start- up date for 2021 CSJ July 22nd, organizing a total of 5 for the 2021 season. 

Businesses Opening/Properties Purchased  
• Property Updates- Communities Inc. closed on multiple Virginia Street properties as the first step in residential 

development project. 
Other 

 
• Downtown Goldsboro’s Facebook page followers/likes grew from 11,959 to 12,098 in the month of May. 

 



GOLDS Ba Re 
BE MORE DO MORE SEYMOUR 

ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT 
May2021 
Prepared by: Guy M. Anderson, P. E. 
Date Prepared: 06-11-2021 

Stoney Creek Greenway 

North Carolina 

• The greenway extends from Royall Avenue to Quail Park along Stoney Creek, approximately 1,600
linear feet;

• Plans submitted to NCDOT for review and approval;
• Staff is working with N COOT to make a few small changes.

Phase IV Sewer Collection Rehabilitation 
• This project is 95% complete;
• Subcontractors are onsite finishing up services and punch list work detailed by McKim & Creed;
• Change orders going to Council June 21st for approval;
• Waiting for subcontractor to return to finish CIPP work.

2019 Infrastructure Recovery (Golden Leaf Foundation) 
• This project consists of sewer rehabilitation and storm drainage improvements in various areas;
• This project is 98% complete;
• Remaining work to complete cured in placed pipe for two sewer mains;
• Installation of the manhole on Grantham Street near Franklin Bakery is completed;
• Currently waiting for Tri-State to finish the CIPP of mains.

2020 Street Improvements Project 
• This paving project includes:

1. Oak Hill Drive from North Berkeley Boulevard to Green Drive;
2. East Chestnut Street from South Slocumb Street to South Leslie Street;
3. Hawthorne Street from Oleander Avenue to Andrews Avenue;
4. Mimosa Street from Claiborne Street to Randolph Street;

• Paving project is underway with contractor performing work on each street as follows:
Oak Hill Drive and Hawthorne Street paving completed;
Undercutting of 2 feet was required for East Chestnut and Mimosa Streets to help stabilize the roads;
Stone placed on East Chestnut Street and the road closed for grading;
East Chestnut Street and Mimosa Street paving scheduled during the month of June;

• This project is 95% complete.

2021 Street Resurfacine 
• Four (4) sealed bids were received at the April 13, 2021 bid opening;
• Due to insufficient funds for street resurfacing staff negotiated with Barnhill Contracting to reduce

the scope of the project and reduce the contract price to $1,653,500;
• City Council awarded contract to Barnhill Contracting on May 17, 2021;

1 
www.goldsboronc.gov 



• A preconstruction conference is projected in July 2021 at which time a Notice Proceed date will be
determined.

2020 Wastewater System Improvements - SIAFB Sewer Outfall Improvements - FB202Q-QQ3 
• In addition to SJAFB Sanitary Sewer Outfall Improvements, this project includes Glen Oak Drive

Sanitary Sewer Outfall Connection;
• Project is complete and contractor is awaiting final payment.

2017 Wastewater System Improvements - FB202Q-Q02 
• The project consists of sewer rehabilitation along North Carolina Street from Holly Street to Ash

Street, sewer rehabilitation along the Big Ditch Outfall from George Street south to Crump Street;

and sewer rehabilitation of a 200-foot segment from the Little River Outfall into old Cherry Hospital
campus;

• Project is 90% complete;
• Staff received DWI approval of Change Order No 1 and contractor scheduled the week of May 17th

to commence work included in this change order;
• Currently installing manholes along Big Ditch with CIPP to follow installation of manholes;
• Contract completion date is June 22, 2021.

2017 Water System Improvements 
• This project consists of creating a separate pressure zone in the New Hope area by installing a

booster pump station at the New Hope Water Tank and a couple of pressure reducing valves at the
extreme ends of the new pressure zone;

• Design plans and specifications are anticipated to be approved by NCDEQ by June/July 2021.

Ash Street/Alabama Avenue Sidewalk 
• This project consists of installing sidewalk from the right-of-way of NC Railroad along Ash Street to

Alabama Street then down Alabama Street to Oak Street;
• Construction plans are 90% complete;
• This project is temporarily on hold by NCDOT.

Professional Eneineerine On-Call Services 
• Requests for qualifications for professional engineering on-call services were received from 24

engineering firms on April 23, 2021;
• The engineering services will require a qualified engineering consultant to conduct on-call activities

for a variety of services: water distribution system projects; water production projects; wastewater
collection projects; wastewater treatment projects; stormwater projects; transportation projects;
and, inspection services for each of the above categories;

• Staffis reviewing qualifications submitted by each firm and will select up to three (3) firms for each
category for approval by City Council at the June 7th Council Meeting.

Best Manaeement Practices (BMPs) Inspections 
• Approximately 308 BMPs have been approved and 258 BMPS have been constructed to date;
• All BMP inspections are temporarily on hold pending replacement of construction inspector.

2 
www.goldsboronc.gov 



 

 
 

1 

FINANCE   
MAY 2021 
Prepared By: Andrea Thompson 
Date Prepared: June 15, 2021 
 

 

FY 19-20
Actual to Date Actual to Date YTD %

Revenues April-20 Adjusted Budget April-21 Collected
General Fund 32,607,896$    42,862,916$        34,417,143$    80.30%
Utility Fund 15,801,959      18,545,322          15,905,588      85.77%
Downtown District Fund 90,637             117,898               91,464             77.58%
Occupancy Tax Fund 911,285           1,199,844            827,777           68.99%
Stormwater Fund 1,278,582        1,775,600            1,339,675        75.45%
     Total 50,690,358$    64,501,580$        52,581,646$    81.52%

Expenditures
General Fund 35,080,840$    42,862,916$        32,281,315$    75.31%
Utility Fund 15,087,944      18,545,322 13,182,153 71.08%
Downtown District Fund 153,341           117,898 24,700             20.95%
Occupancy Tax Fund 966,616           1,199,844 863,441 71.96%
Stormwater Fund 832,975           1,775,600 1,179,287 66.42%
     Total 52,121,717$    64,501,580$        47,530,896$    73.69%

FY 19-20
Revenues Actual to Date Actual to Date YTD %

April-20 Adjusted Budget April-21 Collected
Property/Occupancy Taxes 17,408,568$    18,282,005$        17,682,215$    96.72%
Charges for Services 20,117,548      24,538,399          20,641,338      84.12%
Revenue Other Agencies 8,392,211        15,014,633          9,387,293        62.52%
Other Revenues 1,857,500        2,850,026            1,823,844        63.99%
Fund Balance -                   769,560               -                   0.00%
Shared Services 2,914,532        3,046,957            3,046,957        100.00%
     Total 50,690,358$    64,501,580$        52,581,646$    81.52%

Expenditures
Labor 24,585,843$    31,673,986$        24,312,321$    76.76%
Non-Labor 27,535,874      32,827,594          23,218,575      70.73%
     Total 52,121,717$    64,501,580$        47,530,896$    73.69%

FY 19-20 Actual Total 
Collections Actual April-21 Collected F-YTD

Debt Setoff 46,538$           5,121$                  39,507$           
Surplus 57,818$           3,025$                  54,666$           

OVERALL SUMMARY
FY 20-21

MAJOR CATEGORIES
FY 20-21

SELECTED OTHER INFORMATION



 

 
 
 
 

1 

2021 Jan. Feb. Mar. Apr. May Jun. July Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec. Avg.

Total Incidents: 234 173 227 214 251 220

Structure Fires: 6 4 6 4 3 5

EMS Calls: 89 68 87 83 106 87

Vehicle  Accidents: 36 30 34 35 35 34

Fire Alarms: 49 31 41 40 42 41

O ther: 54 40 59 52 65 54

Training Hours: 3006 3143 3010 2730 2029 2784

Safety Car Seat Checks: 1 0 1 0 1 1

Inspections: 118 149 215 167 179 166

2020 Jan. Feb. Mar. Apr. May Jun. Jul. Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec. Avg.

Total Incidents: 198 187 166 111 118 208 213 213 233 203 204 225 190

Structure Fires: 10 4 2 1 4 4 2 2 6 2 1 3 3

EMS Calls: 70 81 73 7 21 74 89 68 80 88 76 88 68

Vehicle  Accidents: 35 22 26 25 26 29 27 42 34 34 33 35 31

Fire Alarms: 46 29 26 38 33 46 45 49 69 41 46 39 42

O ther: 37 51 39 40 34 55 50 52 44 38 48 60 46

Training Hours: 2969 3061 3626 2426 2289 2254 2351 2244 2522 2514 2032 1962 2521

Safety Car Seat Checks: 3 9 2 0 2 1 0 0 0 0 2 0 2

Inspections: 129 119 143 73 108 134 151 108 119 140 124 132 123

FIRE DEPARTMENT 
May 2021 
Prepared By: James Farfour 
Date Prepared: June 14, 2021 

 The cause of fire incidents was determined 72.3% of the time. 27.7% of fire incidents were 
classified as undetermined or still under investigation.  
 

 The average response time of first arriving unit was 4:29.  
 

 The full response within 8 minutes occurred 96.4% of all calls.  
 

 73.4% of Inspection Violations were cleared within 90 days.  
 

 There were 0 Civilian casualties and 0 Fire Service casualties.  
 

 The American Red Cross assisted 1 family due to displacement because of fire damage.  
 

 Fire prevention and community service activities included several celebration parades, car 
seat installation, the 2nd Annual Foreplay Golf Tournament benefitting Project 1919, and 
Goldsboro High School Graduation Parade. 103 adults and 0 children received fire 
prevention education.   

 
 
 
  
 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Note: Other Fire Calls includes Good Intent Calls, Bomb Scares, Vehicle Fires, Cooking Fires, False Alarms, Assist GPD, Service Calls, 
Haz-Mat Calls, Grass Fires and Unauthorized Burning. 

 



1 

HUMAN RESOURCES   
May 2021 
Date Prepared: June 15, 2021 
 
 
Human Resources  

• The Human Resources Director is working with Developmental Associates to facilitate the assessment 
process for Fire Chief.   

• The City is now registered with College Central Network. This will allow us to recruit college students and 
alumni on the university and community college web portal.   

• Human Resources sponsored the City’s first virtual job fair on May 5, 2021. Twenty-eight registered and five 
departments represented.   

• Staff is working with Wayne Community College to secure internship opportunities for students.  
 

 
Safety   

• City Hall fire extinguisher/defibrillator Inspections.  
• May 5 – Meeting with Doug McGrath concerning the North Carolina Freedom Festival (NCFF).  
• May 5 – Telephone conference with Barett Sellers concerning the Band Parmalee and the NCFF.  
• Scheduled defensive driving courses with Major Learnard.  
• May 7, 8 – Accident Investigations at Fire Station 1 and 2.  
• Researched driving data for Police department from 2018 to present.  
• May 14 – Meeting with Tim Salmon, City Manager, concerning driving data from Police Department.  
• May 18 – OSHA Consultation visits at Water Reclamation Facility and Water Treatment Facility.  
• May 19 – OSHA Consultation visit at Park Maintenance Facility; meeting with compliance agents.  
• May 20 – Accident and Safety Review Committee Meeting – Three cases reviewed.  One employee received 

points (At Fault); One case had no points assigned, and the other is pending further review.  
• Researched heat-related training from Neogov to be posted in June.  
• Working with Pam Leake on an HR investigation; conducting interviews.  
• Researching and working with Duke Energy concerning a relocation of a pole near Fire Station 1.  
• Finishing Department of Labor statistics for 2020.  
• Field inspections for private contractors working in City limits.  

 
 
Occupational Health  
There was no health beat this month. Total clinic visits: 99. Fit testing took place at Public Utilities. The City sponsored a 
blood drive at Public Works.  

 

MONTHLY STATISTICS 

2021 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC AVG 
Total 
Employment 

569 566 562 562 557        563 

Vacancies  12 8 26 21 18        17 
Applications 183 119 203 245 267        203 



2 

2021 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC AVG 
New Hires  8 2 1 3 4        4 
Resignations 1 2 3 3 6        3 
Retirements  0 3 2 0 2        1 
Terminations  0 0 0 0 1        1 
Turnover 
Rate  

.18% .88% .89% .53% 1.44%        .78% 

Vehicle 
Accidents 

2 5 2 7 3        4 

Workers’ 
Compensation 

0 0 0 0 0        0 

FFCRA Leave  41 5 5 3 5        12 
Telework 27  28 25 23 13        23 

 

2020 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC AVG 

Total 
Employment 

573  573 575 574 573 571 568 565 561 561 560 562 568 

Vacancies  21 23 28 16 12 13 12 13 19 12 9 18 17 
Applications 480 367 208 158 73 124 227 225 262 177 44 278 213 

Applicant 
Notices 

277 295 110 259 117 384 106 94 122 111 135 140 183 
 

New Hires      9 6 5 3 1 3 3 4 2 5 3 7 4 
Resignations 1 3 2 4 1 5 3 6 4 4 1 1 3 
Retirements  4 2 1 0 1 0 3 1 1 1 1 4 2 
Terminations  0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 2 0 .36 
Turnover 
Rate  

.87% .87% .52% .70% .35% .88% 1.06% 1.24% .89% .89% .36% .89% 0.79% 

Vehicle 
Accidents 

    4 0 2 5 5 2 0 0 2 0 0 1 2 

Workers’ 
Compensation 

    0 0 0 1 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 0 0.25 

FFCRA Leave    0 10 6 20 20 11 17 13 6 31 13 

Telework   37 39 35 32 32 32 33 24 19 25 31 

 
Note: Hiring and separation statistics (resignations, retirements, and terminations) represent full-time and permanent 
part-time personnel.  



 

 
 

1 

Information Technology  
May 2021 
Prepared By: Scott Williams 
Date Prepared: June 04, 2021 
 

• Upgraded Security Video Servers and Cityworks Test Server. 
• Assisted with Virtual Job Fair. 
• Fixed IVR Number issues (Energov) 
• Upgrades Windows Update Server used to update all City devices. 
• Replaced camera at Water Treatment Plant. 
• Completed AFIX Tracker Upgrade at the Police Department. 
• Upgraded Solar Winds Monitoring Tools. 
• Installed printers for GPD Police Cars 
• Tested eCrash. Completed eCrash Installs for Goldsboro Police Department. 
• Replaced UPS Units for Signal System Servers. 
• Installed seven cameras at GWTA. 
• Resolved RMS Reporting Issue for Goldsboro Police Department. 
• Setup Tech Booth Computer at Paramount. 
• Installed new storage for IT Software (Replacement). 
• Created SMS Photos in CoDa. 
• Complete Business Registration Renewals with Inspections. 

 
 

2021 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC AVG TOTAL 
               
Tickets 
Opened 

562 564 634 468 473        540 2,701 

Tickets 
Closed 

447 615 612 436 528        528 2,638 

Open  
Tickets 

473 422 444 476 421        432  

 
 

2020 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC AVG TOTAL 
               
Tickets 
Opened 

551 656 595 618 448 578 641 533 495 532 457 414 555 
 

6,518 
 

Tickets 
Closed 

524 684 560 680 425 632 705 502 447 529 427 529 556 
 

6,644 

Open  
Tickets 

511 483 518 456 479 425 361 392 440 443 473 358 445  

 



 

 
 

1 

INSPECTIONS 
May 2021 
Prepared By: Allen Anderson, Jr. 
Date Prepared 06/05/21 
 
The valuation of all permits issued for May totaled $5,876,282.  While Covid-19 is still a major concern for our local 
economy, development has taken an upward trend compared to the past several years. 
 
All permit fees collected for the month totaled $21,219.  Of the permit fees collected for the month, $3,075 was 
collected in technology fees.  Plan review fees collected during the month totaled $2,720. Business Registration fees 
collected totaled $1,060. 
 
The Inspectors did a total of 483 inspections for the month.  During the month of May, eight (8) business 
inspections were completed.  A total of 254 permits were issued for the month.   Forty-five (45) plan reviews were 
completed for May.   
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

2021 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Avg
All Permit Valu. $ (M) $7.9 $18.2 $6 $4.4 $5.9 $8.5
All Bldgs $ (M) $6.8 $16.3 $2.5 $1.1 $4.8 $6.3
Residential $ (K) $1.2M $900 $1.2M $250 $1.1M $1M
Misc $ (M) $1 $1.9 $3.5 $3.4 $1.1 $2.2
Permit Fee $ (K) $26.6 $32.5 $57 $34 $21 $34.2
Inspections 398 462 625 538 483 501
Permits Issued 215 295 359 296 254 284
Plan Reviews 48 94 71 68 45 65

2020 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Avg
All Permit Valu. $ (M) $14 $5.3 $2.7 $5.1 $3.2 $8.9 $4.7 $10.9 $28.8 $7.3 $4.6 $6.3 $8.5
All Bldgs $ (M) $11 $2.3 $1.4 $3.8 $1.9 $7.0 $3.1 $9.1 $27.1 $1.7 $2.9 $3.5 $6.2
Residential $ (K) $2.6M $843 $435 $2.4M $858 $834 $575 $1.6M $375 $1.3 $1.1 $191 $1.1
Misc $ (M) $3 $3 $1.3 $1.3 $1.3 $1.9 $1.6 $1.8 $1.7 $5.6 $1.7 $2.80 $2.3
Permit Fee $ (K) $45 $48 $29 $38 $33 $53 $32 $47 $45 $37 $30 $30 $39
Inspections 597 351 612 430 474 502 619 532 709 625 484 492 536
Permits Issued 271 249 257 229 251 273 268 277 294 238 230 227 255
Plan Reviews 17 43 41 45 50 46 36 48 63 31 24 30 40
Min Housing 134 136 157 157 157 157
In Process



 

 
 

1 

PARAMOUNT & GEC 
May 2021 
Prepared by:  Adam Twiss 
Date Prepared: 6/14/2021 

 
--------------PARAMOUNT THEATRE-------------- 

• May capacity mostly restricted by Executive Order; max 50% with 6’ distancing, masks. 
• May activity included 22 days rental, 13 public performances. 
• May COVID-19 cancelled/rescheduled programming includes: 11 days, 4 public perfs. 
• Spring rentals strong; capacity, distancing, masking restrictions lifted at end of month. 
• Repairs and Maintenance:  

o Safety inspections: wheelchair lift loading plate to be installed by maintenance.  
o Roofing; temporary repairs holding, permanent repairs investigated by TA Loving. 

 

--------------FINANCIAL-------------- 
 

o Expenses –$42,371:    Labor - $22,549 / Operations – $5,647 /Renter BO Payout – $14,175 
o Revenues - $58,020:        Tickets -$43,593 / Rentals- $14,427 / Concession- $0    

 
--------------GOLDSBORO EVENT CENTER-------------- 

• May capacity mostly restricted by Executive Order; max 50% with 6’ distancing, masks. 
• May activity included 6 event rental days, 2 non-revenue City event. 
• May COVID-19 cancelled/rescheduled include 16 event rental days 
• Summer rentals strong; capacity, distancing, masking restrictions lifted at end of month. 
• Repairs and Maintenance:  

o Improving landscaping and front garden beds. 
o Consulting on improvements to exterior and parking lot lighting. 

 

--------------FINANCIAL-------------- 
o Expenses – $9,469: Labor -  $5,433 / Operational – $4,036 
o Revenues – $5,168:            Rentals - $4,635 / Amenities - $327 / Food and Bev – $206 
o Value of City Use – $750:   

 

 July-20 Aug-20 Sept-20 Oct-20 Nov-20 Dec-20 Jan-21 Feb-21 Mar-21 April-21 May-21 June-21 2021 Total 2021 Average 

Exp $12,499 $13,295 $16,383 $7,931 $6,727 $14807 $8,153 $11,245 $13,874 $7,339 $9,469  $121,722 $11,066 

Rev $0 <$3,694> $541 $6,894 $6,122 $12,067 <$1,732> $4,695 $5,778 $3,737 $5,168  $39,576 $3,598 

City $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,925 $850 $0 $0 $775 $775 $750  $5,075 $461 
 July-19 Aug-19 Sept-19 Oct-19 Nov-19 Dec-19 Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20 April-20 May-20 June-20 2020 Total 2020 Average 

Exp $6,887 $10,356 $9,001 $13,055 $6,916 $13,636 $7,740 $21,673 $19,737 $9,130 $8,164 $7,677 $134,542 $11,212 

Rev $2,000 $8,369 $12,579 $7,439 $7,799 $11,371 $9,590 $7,825 $1,383 -$548 $1,916 $2,038 $73,799 $6,150 

City $2,075 $2,700 $4,700 $10,076 $6,483 $9,436 $6,800 $4,964 $375 $0 $0 $375 $47,984 $3,999 

 

 July-20 Aug-20 Sept-20 Oct-20 Nov-20 Dec-20 Jan-21 Feb-21 Mar-21 April-21 May-21 June-21 2021 Total 2021 Average 

Exp $31,420 $29,780 $11,774 $23,883 $31,146 $49,123 $36,588 $26,876 $44,093 $52,183 $42,371  $338,836 $33,887 

Rev $1,218 <$633> $1,625 $635 $1,508 $2,260 $15,982 $4,697 $5,712 $8,874 $58,020  $99.918 $9,083 

 July-19 Aug-19 Sept-19 Oct-19 Nov-19 Dec-19 Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20 April-20 May-20 June-20 2020 Total 2020 Average 

Exp $21,916 $41,241 $43,600 $50,200 $32,374 $66,748 $61,859 $56,489 $65,545 $23,792 $113,559 $23,856 $598,037 $49,836 

Rev $8,423 $8,090 $7,824 $12,301 $16,740 $28,934 $83,453 $88,232 $27,544 $15,415 $43,468 $1,781 $289,574 $24,131 



 
1 
 

Parks & Recreation 
May - 2021 
Prepared By: Joshua Shockley/Felicia Brown 
Date Prepared – 6/7/2021 

• Parks Maintenance Staff have continued to make improvements in our parks.  Bottle filling stations are 
being installed in our parks. 
 

• Goldsboro Golf Course hosted the Cooper’s Tavern tournament on May 8th – 49 participants. 
 

• Top Gun Baseball Tournament was held at Mina Weil Park on May 1st & 2nd and May 8th & 9th - 1600 
participants and spectators. 
 

• Goldsboro Golf Course hosted the 1st Sergeants tournament on May 14th – 76 participants. 
 

• Parks and Recreation conducted a Lifeguard Certification Class May 14th – 16th at Peacock Pool. 
 

• Bryan Multi-Sports Complex hosted the Kepner Cup for 13U Boys on May 15th & 16th - 2,880 participants 
and spectators. 
 

• Goldsboro Golf Course Maintenance Staff successfully aerated the greens on May 17th & 18th. 
 

• Mother Son Date Night Boxes were distributed on May 21st - 20 boxes were pre-purchased. 
 

• Peacock Pool and Mina Weil Pool opened up for the 2021 Summer Season on Memorial Day Weekend  
o 330 participants --- $757 profit from gate and concessions. 

 
 

 



 

 
 

 

 
 
**Expenditures include part-time labor cost and facility operational cost but do not include full-time labor  

cost, loan/bond payments and electricity for the areas with the exception of our Golf Course.  All of these costs 
are included for our Golf Course Expenditures. 

2021 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC 
AVG 

Herman Park Rec Center  
             Program Revenue $220 $530 $390 $230 $5,860        $1,446 

Rental Revenue  $0 $330 $0 $1,110 $270        $342 

Facility Usage 152 193 287 187 294        223 

Expenditures $3,487 $1,054 $1,538 $405 384        $1,374 

              

WA Foster Rec Center              

Program Revenue $185 $190 $535 $195 $250        $271 

Rental Revenue $450 $0 $285 $690 $2100        $705 

Facility Usage 660 924 1304 1,378 1,475        1,148 

Expenditures $4,429 $2,992 $4,610 $8,413 $3,586        $4,806 

              

T. C. Coley Community Center              

Rental Revenue $578 $450 $450 $585 $578        $528 

Expenses $4,797 $1416 $0 $1,848 $0        $1612 

              

Specialized Recreation              

Program Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0 $0        $0 

Rental Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0 $0        $0 

Facility Usage 0 73 92 0 5        34 

Expenditures $1,048 $737 $1,049 $0 $0        $567 

              

Senior Programs & Pools              

Program Revenue $140 $140 $140 $140 $897        $291 

Rental Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0 $0        $0 

Facility Usage 200 371 310 720 608        442 

Expenditures $1,591 $2435 $1,048 $1,642 $6,203        $2,584 

              
Athletics, Field & 
Picnic Shelters, BMSC              

Program Revenue $1,550 $10,200 $14,891 $3,760 $7,185        $7,517 

Field / Shelter Rental $ $400 $200 $1,675 $450 $1,555        $856 

Facility Usage 8,612 13,825 15,500 14,339 29,339        16,323 

Expenditures $6,866 $9.515 $11,471 $28,210 $33,191        $17,851 

              

Golf Course              

Revenues $36,583 $9,209 $53,613 $66,926 $72,876        $47,841 

Expenditures $32,349 $35,105 $36,628 $39,424 $54,589        $39,619 

Rounds of Golf 486 596 1,714 2,120 2,641        1,511 

Net $5,347 -25,896 $16,985 $27,502 $18,287        $8,223 

              

Special Events              

Sponsorships / Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0 $0        $0 

Participation 0 0 434 0 0        87 

Expenditures $0 0 $171 $110 $110        $78 

              

TOTAL REVENUE $40,106 $21,249 $71,979 $74,086 $91,571        $59,798 

TOTAL EXPENSES $54,567 $53,254 $56,515 $80,052 $98,063        $68,490 

TOTAL REVENUE FOR THE YEAR             $298,991 

TOTAL EXPENSES FOR THE YEAR             $342,451 



 

 
 

 
 

2020 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC 
AVG 

Herman Park Rec Center  
             Program Revenue $2,361 $3,933 $336 $0 $0 $0 $20 $0 $20 $275 $80 $20 $587 

Rental Revenue  $260 $1,225 $1,240 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0 $235 $0 $137 $258 

Facility Usage 418 1,082 267 0 0 0 0 0 36 97 42 69 168 

Expenditures $4,257 $5,205 $2,542 $2,270 $1,388 $641 $188 $910 $2,608 $2,593 $614 $1,459 $2,056 

              

WA Foster Rec Center              

Program Revenue $10 $5 $15 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $70 $195 $290 $275 $72 

Rental Revenue $975 $1,563 $900 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,260 $3,048 $113 $0 $655 

Facility Usage 4,050 3,604 605 0 0 0 0 0 30 150 549 737 810 

Expenditures $10,396 $8,788 $5,335 $2,833 $3,216 $3,732 $2,980 $1,749 $2,781 $5,069 $2677 $3,650 $4,434 

              

Specialized Recreation              

Program Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $460 $0 $0 $38 

Rental Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0 

Facility Usage 354 339 197 0 0 0 0 0 0 126 22 10 87 

Expenditures $2,020 $2,164 $1,173 $40 $226 $58 $0 $165 $300 $694 $393 $88 $610 

              

Senior Programs & Pools              

Program Revenue $280 $201 $157 $0 $0 $3,469 $5,425 $1,859 $352 $140 $846 $140 $1,072 

Rental Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Facility Usage 1,144 1,532 674 0 33 1,107 2,772 1,398 205 104 184 137 774 

Expenditures $2,223 $2,380 $7,343 $4,686 $1,961 $12,588 $21,173 $12,077 $6,149 $1596 $1683 $450 $6,712 

              
Athletics, Field & 
Picnic Shelters, BMSC              

Program Revenue $3,262 $5,000 $5,080 $0 $0 $2,420 $1,725 $195 $1,200 $400 $3,788 $440 $1,959 

Field / Shelter Rental $ $700 $5,010 $1,200 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0 $750 $0 $0 $638 

Facility Usage 12,865 17,845 6,585 300 644 1,522 3,425 3,724 5,130 9,781 20,274 5,839 7,328 

Expenditures $6,663 $14,564 $11,999 $13,607 $38,561 $7,269 $13,661 $9,689 $7,792 $9,321 $7,725 $8,110 $12,413 

              

Golf Course              

Revenues $42,254 $16,420 $48,796 $55,207 $61,268 $50,249 $71,304 $46,781 $61,011 $59,039 $46,994 $24,172 $48,625 

Expenditures $44,862 $23,671 $55,861 $43,212 $42,815 $165,446 $32,993 $43,191 $41,328 $33,101 $45,288 $43,392 $51,263 

Rounds of Golf 973 557 1,421 1,805 2,227 2,158 2,137 1,867 1,930 1,871 1,542 922 1,618 

Net - $2,608 $-7,251 -$7,065 $11,995 $18,454 -$115,197 $38,311 $3,589 $19,683 $25,938 $1,706 
-

$19,220 -$2,639 

              

Special Events              

Sponsorships / Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $300 $210 $0 $40 

Participation 0 0 130 0 0 0 0 0 0 175 32 3,489 319 

Expenditures $332 $0 $292 $34 $0 $288 $110 $0 $0 $2,132 $1,204 $1,095 $457 

              

TOTAL REVENUE $50,102 $33,357 $57,724 $55,207 $61,268 $56,138 $78,474 $48,835 $63,913 $64,842 $52,291 $25,184 $53,945 

TOTAL REVENUE FOR THE YEAR             $647,335 



 

 
 

1 

 
PLANNING 
May 2021 
Prepared By: Rachael Smith 
Date Prepared:  June 11, 2021 

During the month of May, the Planning staff reviewed and signed off on all commercial and residential 
building and sign permits.   Staff continues to prepare for upcoming meetings and has overseen 
contracted projects for the ADA Transition Plan, a marketing contract for GWTA and landscaping 
maintenance for Welcome to Goldsboro signs and enhancement areas.    Staff is in the process for 
compliance with the NCGS Legislative 160D updates, a Consultant has been selected to assist with the 
legislative updates to the Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) updates to become effective July 1, 
2021. On-going projects include tree and stump removal, preparation of transportation-related 
documents and preparation of case reports.  Code Enforcement issues $25.00 parking violation tickets 
within the downtown area or upon notification elsewhere in the City. During the month of May, nine (7) 
tickets were issued.   

Parked in Wrong Direction 3 
Parked in Proximity to Fire Hydrant 0 

Parked in a Prohibited Area (No Parking Zone) 2 
Other (Bus Loading Zone, Crosswalk, Sidewalk, Alley) 2 

2021 
 

 

2021 Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Total Average

Site/Subdivision Plans
Planning 

Commission
1 3 3 0 1 8 1

Staff Level 3 3 3 3 2 14 1

Rezonings 0 0 3 0 1 4 0
Historic District Commission
Commission 

Review
0 0 1 0 0 1 0

Staff Review 1 0 0 1 0 2 0

Code Enforcement 
Grass Cutting 
# Lots 0 0 1 36 68 105 13

Grass Cutting 
Payments 0 0 175 1420 $2,430 $4,025 $503

Junk Vehicles 18 8 21 38 15 100 8

Tagged 
Vehicles

25 15 12 21 23 96 8

Illegal Signs 
Removed

52 77 380 36 30 575 48

Bags of Litter 
Picked Up 210 186 231 232 204 1063 89



 

 
2020 
 

2020 Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Total Average 
Site/Subdivision Plans 

Planning 
Commission 

2 4 2 3 2 1 3 3 2 1 7 3 33 3 

Staff Level 0 2 1 1 1 2 2 1 2 3 3 3 21 2 
  

Rezonings 2 1 1 0 0 1 0 0 2 3 2 1 13 1 
Historic District Commission 
Commission 

Review 
1 1 0 0 1 0 1 1 1 1 1 1 9 1 

Staff 
Review 

1 0 1 2 2 1 0 2 2 2 1 2 16 1 

  
Code Enforcement  
Grass 
Cutting  
# Lots 

0 0 0 36 53 28 82 119 53 124 35 0 530 66 

Grass 
Cutting  
Payments 

0 0 0 $2,115 $3,025  $2,205  $4,025  $6,850  $2,870  $5,340 $1,905  $      -   $28,335 $3,542 

Junk 
Vehicles 

0 7 2 2 27 0 0 0 2 3 10 16 69 6 

Tagged 
Vehicles 

0 43 7 47 2 5 25 50 26 21 25 25 276 23 

Illegal Signs 
Removed 

0 0 143 67 13 38 80 900 24 44 247 166 1722 144 

Bags of 
Litter 
Picked Up 

292 2438 261 187 224 197 211 250 737 419 209 328 5753 479 

 





 

 
 

1 

PUBLIC UTILITIES DEPARTMENT 
May 2021 
Prepared By: Michael Wagner 
Date Prepared: June 14, 2021 
 
Water Treatment Plant 

• The Water Treatment Plant operations are proceeding smoothly. 
o The Neuse River intake screen remains covered in sand with the bypass open until a river 

dredge can take place. 
o The plate settler construction project is complete. Final payments to the engineer and 

contractor are in process, as well as, closeout paperwork with the Division of Water 
Infrastructure. 

 
Water Reclamation Facility 

• The Water Reclamation Facility (WRF) operations have been demanding. In 2021, the plant is 
operating at 99% capacity. The average daily flows for May were 8.61-MGD.  

o All of the city’s 26 pump stations are operating well, with the exception of the 117, Little 
Cherry, and New Hope pump station bar screens, impacts from high flows, and 
communication with the obsolete telemetry system continues to be prepared for an 
upgrade. 

o Operators have had to respond to several recent power outages at pump stations, at all 
hours of the day and night. Failed telemetry radios have delayed emergency response, but 
no violations have occurred during each event.  

 
Compost Facility 

• Nine-hundred and two cubic yards of compost and mulch were sold in May 2021. 
o Agitator #2 remains out of service due to hydraulic pumping failure. The agitator has been 

out of service since 2016, as staff works to rehabilitate the equipment internally.  
 
Historical data for water and sewer volumes are in million gallons per day (MGD) and are average 
daily flows for each month. 
 

2021 
MGD 

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Monthly 
Average 

Water* 5.878 6.348 6.000 5.996 6.619        6.168 
Sewer** 16.73 19.28 14.68 10.97 8.61        14.05 

Compost 297 109 733 1406 902        689 
*Water permit- 12.0 MGD; **Wastewater permit- 14.2 MGD 
 

2020 
MGD 

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Monthly 
Average 

Water* 6.032 6.201 6.318 6.117 6.639 6.779 7.033 6.529 6.564 6.368 6.109 5.953 6.386 
Sewer** 9.71 13.45 9.95 8.60 10.11 12.33 10.36 12.83 10.00 9.84 13.87 12.87 11.16 
Compost 283 950 824 914 727 570 237 389 286 830 428 329 563 

*Water permit- 12.0 MGD; **Wastewater permit- 14.2 MGD 



Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
4.5 11.4 2.3 14.9 5.4 7.7

8.6 6.6 3.6 2.3 3.1 4.8

17 27 22 22 21 21.8

18 11 13 27 14 16.6

9 4 6 8 4 6.2

18 14 12 28 34 21.2

52 45 44 42 40 44.6

14 14.0

0 0 60 127 95 56.4

0 10 41 94.6 85.4 46.2

294 288 286 263 243 274.8

48$       50$       56$       51$       40$       49.0

0.9 0.9 1.1 1.1 0.9 0.986

97 82 89 94 81 88.7

0.5 0.5 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.578

11 1 8 4 7 6.2

0 5 30 31 26 18.4
83 65 39 65 18 54.0

175 81 120.8 178 117 134.4
17.33 0.84 2.16 0.00 1.44 4.354
14.00 0.48 0.00 0.28 12.82 5.515

1 3 2 4 5 3.0

22.3 12.2 35.4 17.3 3.4 18.9 18.5 25.8 9.1 37.8 11.8 12.9 18.8
5.8 5.2 7.6 5.1 12.6 7.6 11.8 10.8 11.0 12.5 4.7 4.2 8.2
27 22 27 19 9 16 30 24 20 26 15 26 21.8
12 10 29 19 12 9 17 5 16 19 5 7 13.3
9 9 2 3 2 9 3 8 9 6 4 44 9.0

34 36 33 22 30 42 33 17 21 13 17 18 26.3

42 23 54 50 49 58 69 63 62 47 37 51 50.4
78 56 54 23 24 24 51 48 53 56 31 46 45.3
0 0 44 73 101.6 98 149 135 115 52 32.5 0 66.7
0 0 50 92 89 88 110 64 70 89 12 0 55.3

228 357 209 296 245 277 292 288 285 247 280 251 271.3
46$       67$       52$       60$       52$       56$       70$       53$       64$       52$       52$       50$       56.2

0.9 0.8 0.9 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.0
103 79 93 88 88 88 117 18 62 107 66 115.18 85.3
0.4 0.7 0.1 0.9 0.9 0.7 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.8 0.7 1.1 0.7

5 3 9 4 2 6 5 5 6 6 9 10 5.8

0 0 18 29 10 24 26 26 34 15 10 0 16.0
49 83 30 28 35 50 64 30 17 39 41 75 45.1
48 112.3 66.2 128 123.1 142.7 145.7 138.3 68.2 93 123.1 137 110.5

0.08 0.50 0.05 1.73 2.07 6.96 0.70 4.71 0.15 0.08 0.01 0.24 1.4
0.00 0.00 0.00 2.51 1.17 12.27 6.12 11.30 1.52 2.28 9.30 0.00 3.9

1 7 5 5 5 4 5 5 5 3 8 3 4.7

Water Repairs
Sewer Repairs

Monthly Highlights

Departments AVG

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 &
 

C
o

lle
ct

io
n

s

Utility Line Maint (1000-ft)
Lines Camera'd (1000-ft)

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 &
 

C
o

lle
ct

io
n

s

Utility Line Maint (1000-ft)
Lines Camera'd (1000-ft)

Water Repairs

Sewer Repairs

Hydrants Replaced/Fixed

Meter Install/Changed

City-Owned Lots Mowing (ac)

Hydrants Replaced/Fixed
Meter Install/Changed

Radio, Electrical, Bldg 
Sign Repairs

B
ld

g 
 &

 

G
ro

u
n

d
s

ROW Mowing (ac)

 Total Fuel Cost (x1000)

Refuse (x1000 tons)

Garage
Total Work Orders

Utility Cut Repairs

Solid 

Waste
Recyclables (tons)

Leaf-n-Limbs (x1000 tons)

Cemetery Funerals

St
re

e
t 

&
 

St
o

rm

Pipe&Open Ditch Maint(1000-ft)
Ditch mowing (1000-ft)

Storm Pipe Repairs

Pot Hole Repairs
Streets Swept (miles)

2021

B
ld

g 
 &

 

G
ro

u
n

d
s Radio, Electrical, Bldg 

Sign Repairs

ROW Mowing (ac)

City-Owned Lots Mowing (ac)

Signing responsibilities transferred to Engineering Department

Total Work Orders

 Total Fuel Cost (x1000)

Solid 

Waste

Refuse (x1000 tons)

Recyclables (tons)

Leaf-n-Limbs (x1000 tons)

Public Works Department

May 2021
Prepared by:  Chad Edge

Date Prepared:  14 June 2021

2020

Cemetery Funerals

Utility Cut Repairs

Pot Hole Repairs

Storm Pipe RepairsSt
re

e
t 

&
 S

to
rm

Streets Swept (miles)

Pipe&Open Ditch Maint(1000-ft)

Ditch mowing (1000-ft)

Garage

10 Volunteers and 8 pieces of equipment from Solid Waste, Streets, and Stormwater participated in the Touch-A-Truck event held by 
Partnership for Children of Wayne County/ Smart Start.

Buildings & Grounds: Numerous electrical, LED, and other lighting repairs and upgrades for WRF, City Hall, Herman Park Center, Public 
Works Complex, Event Center, & Paramount

Distribution & Collections: Continuing to maintain 24 hr bypass pumping of compromised sewer line at Cherry Hospital; Call duty 
responded to 21 after hour calls—total of 34 hours.; Mowed approximately 7 miles of sewer and water easements.

Streets & Stormwater: Assisted Parks & Rec with preparing site for Splash Pad at Bryan MSC; Removed four hazardous trees from City 
ROW and property; Cleared excessive growth in vacant lots next to Willowdale Cemetery.



 

 
 

1 

Travel and Tourism 
May 2021 
Prepared by: Joanna Ferrin and Amber Herring  
Date Prepared: 6/10/21 
 

• Inquiries were fulfilled for the month of May by the TTO—845 e-inquiries. 

• Total hotel revenue generated in April was $2,134,221, which is up 125.8% 

YOY. May revenue not yet released. 

• For the month, TTO Facebook page had 164 new page follows and 156 page 

likes. Instagram page has 54 new followers.  

• The SJAFB tours will resume in June.  

• May was National BBQ Month and the Visit Goldsboro, NC social media 

channels featured barbecue restaurants throughout Wayne County, with 

content supplied by each restaurant. On the schedule was Wilbers BBQ, 

McCalls Seafood & BBQ, and Adam’s Roadside & Downtown BBQ locations. 

• Goldsboro-Wayne County will have two press members visiting June 10th-12th 

to write an article on the top things to do in the area. The T&T office 

will be conducting a guided tour of the area for them on June 11th and 

June 12th they will be self-guided with recommendations via their 

itinerary. Highlighted locations include Downtown Goldsboro, Cliffs of 

the Neuse State Park, Historic Mount Olive, Odom Farming Company, Holly 

Grove Farms and Mt. Olive Pickle Company.  

• (3) Travel Writers have been acquired to attend NC Freedom Festival, 

through the T&T office, taking place September 18th.  

• T&T has launched their annual “Hit Us with Your Best Shot Photo Contest” 

that will span through the month of June, ending on June 30th. People are 

encouraged to submit images taken throughout Goldsboro-Wayne County. 

First place winner will win tickets to the Paramount Theatre, $25 

Downtown Dollars and various Totally Fly swag items.   

 

     City Occupancy Tax Collections  

 July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb March April May June YTD Average 

2020-21 $63,053 $79,612 $70,672 $86,804 $58,755 $103,416 $65,157 $54,670 $61,336 $94,544 $75,710 $ $813,729 $73,975 

2019-20 $82,004 $88,424 $92,348 $85,480 $81,911 $72,631 $61,017 $71,071 $73,114 $54,362 $38,523 $54,254 $855,139 $71,262 
 


	Agenda 6-21-21
	Item A.1 Minutes 6-7-21
	MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL HELD
	JUNE 7, 2021
	UWORK SESSION
	The City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, met in a Work Session in the Council Chambers, City Hall, 214 North Center Street, at 3:00 p.m. on June 7, 2021 with attendance as follows:
	Present:
	Mayor Pro Tem David Ham, Presiding
	Councilmember Hiawatha Jones
	Councilmember Bill Broadaway
	Councilmember Taj Polack
	Councilmember Brandi Matthews
	CITY COUNCIL MEETING
	Present:  Mayor Pro Tem David Ham, Presiding
	Councilmember Hiawatha Jones
	Councilmember Bill Broadaway
	Councilmember Taj Polack
	Councilmember Brandi Matthews
	Absent:  Mayor Chuck Allen
	Councilmember Gene Aycock
	Mayor Pro Tem Ham called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.

	Item A.2 Special Meeting Minutes 6-10-21
	The City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, met in a Special Meeting to discuss the FY21-22 Budget in the Council Chambers, City Hall, 214 North Center Street, at 3:00 p.m. on June 10, 2021 with attendance as follows:
	Present: Mayor Pro Tem David Ham, Presiding
	Councilmember Hiawatha Jones
	Councilmember Bill Broadaway
	Councilmember Taj Polack
	Councilmember Brandi Matthews

	Item B  Z-5-21 Anita Yousif Agenda Memo PH
	Item C  Z-6-21 Agenda Memo PH
	Item D  Z-8-21 Agenda Memo PH
	Item E  Change Order Nos. 26, 27, 29 & 30 for Phase IV Sewer Collection Rehabilitation (Formal Bid No. 2018-004)
	Item F  Agenda 2021-06-21 G1104 Parks Rec CPF Amend
	Agenda Item G1104 Parks & Rec 2021-06-21
	ORDINANCE G1104 Parks & Rec 2021-06-21

	Item G  Agenda 2021-06-21 G1107 Parks & Rec SRF amendment
	Agenda Item G1107 PR SRF Amend 2021-06-21
	ORDINANCE G1107 Parks Rec SRF 2021-06-21

	Item H  Agenda 2021-06-21 G1108 Comm Relations SRF
	Agenda Item G1108 Comm Relations SRF 2021-06-21
	ORDIN G1108 Comm Relations SRF 2021-06-21

	Item I  Agenda 2021-06-21 P3101 Fed State Forfeiture
	Agenda Memo Fed State Forfeiture P3101 2021-06-21
	ORDIN P3101 Fed & St Forfeit 2021-06-21

	Item J  Agenda 2021-06-21 R1102 FEMA Florence
	Agenda Memo FEMA Florence R1102 2021-06-21
	ORDIN R1102 FEMA Florence Amend 2021-06-21

	Item K  Agenda 2021-06-21 R1103 Tiger Amend
	Agenda Item R1103 Tiger Amendment 2021-06-21
	ORDINANCE R1103 Tiger VIII Cap Project 2021-06-21

	Item L Agenda 2021-06-16 R1105 County CRF Grant_1
	Agenda Memo R1105 CARES Act SRF 2021-06-16_1
	ORDIN R1105 CARES Act SRF 2021-06-16_1

	Item M  Agenda 2021-06-21 R1107 ARP
	Agenda Memo R1107 ARPA Ordinance 2021-06-2
	ORDIN R1107 ARPA 2021-06-21

	Item N  Agenda S1106 Little Big Cherry Asadra  2021-06-21
	Item O  Agenda 2021-06-21 T2201 Stormwater CPF
	Agenda Memo T2201 Stormwater Ordinance 21-06-21
	ORDIN T2201 Stormwater CPF 21-06-21

	Item P  Agenda 2021-06-21 W111 Water Lines Amendment
	Agenda W1111 SRF Water Lines  2021-06-21
	ORDIN W1111 Water Lines 2021-06-21

	Item Q  Agenda 2021-06-21 W1113 2 In Galv Water Lines Project
	Agenda W1113 SRF 2 In Galv Water Lines  2021-06-21
	ORDIN W1113 2 In Galv Water Lines

	Item R Agenda 2021-06-21 FY21 Operating Amendment
	Agenda Oper Amend FY21 2021-06-21
	ORDINANCE FY21 Budget 2021-06-21

	Item S  Agenda 2021-06-21 BB&T Installment Finance & Depository
	Agenda Item BBT Inst Finance 2021-06-21
	Resolution BBT Inst Finance $1.65M
	Resolution BBT Depository Relationship 2021-06-21
	Truist Proposal - Goldsboro, NC - Rolling Stock

	Item T  Boards and Commissions Appt Memo
	Item U Monthly Departmental Reports
	Item U-1 Community Relations Monthly Report
	Item U-2 Downtown Monthly Report
	Other

	Item U-3 Engineering Monthly Report
	Item U-4 Finance Monthly Report
	Item U-5 Fire Monthly Report
	Item U-6 Human Resources Monthly Report
	Item U-7 Information Technology Monthly Report
	Item U-8 Inspections Monthly Report
	Item U-9 Paramount_GEC Monthly Report-May 2021
	Item U-10 Parks and Recreation Monthly Report
	Item U-11 Planning Monthly Report
	Item U-12 Police Monthly Report
	Item U-13 Public Utilities Monthly Report
	Item U-14 Public Works Monthly Report
	Item U-15 Tourism Monthly Report

